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To be first for housing 
 
 

Your Homes Newcastle Board 
26 January 2021 
 

 

 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES 
 

YHN Business Strategy, Destination 2022 outlines three strategic 
objectives, which is the subject of this report. 
 
1. Revolutionary services that support successful living 
2. Amazing places where people are proud to live 
3. Strong business fit for today, ready for tomorrow 
 

STRATEGIC RISK 
REGISTER 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR11: Unsuccessful transformation of repairs & 
Construction Services by YHN 
 

LIKELIHOOD 3 (Moderate) 
 

IMPACT 3 (Moderate) 
 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR12: Unsuccessful transformation of call centre 
 

LIKELIHOOD 3 (Moderate) 
 

IMPACT 3 (Moderate) 
 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR14: Failure to exploit digital imperative in time 
 

LIKELIHOOD 3 (Moderate) 
 

IMPACT 3 (Moderate) 
 

TITLE D22 Business Strategy Update 
AUTHOR Tina Drury – Managing Director 

COMPANY Your Homes Newcastle 
ACTION REQUIRED  For Discussion 

SUMMARY This report presents an update on the delivery of YHN’s Business 
Strategy Destination 2022. 
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NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR16 Failure to drive culture change 
 

LIKELIHOOD 3 (Moderate) 
 

IMPACT 3 (Moderate) 
 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR17 Failure to meet expectations of customers 
 

LIKELIHOOD 3 (Moderate) 
 

IMPACT 3 (Moderate) 
 

FINANCIAL / VALUE FOR MONEY 
IMPLICATIONS 
 

This report has financial implications regarding the 
discussions of the Board under item 13 on the agenda 
Group Budget/Delivery Plan. 
 

CUSTOMER IMPACT / VIEWS Due to the pandemic, the world has changed, and 
customers priorities have changed, we need to ensure 
D22 is still fit for purpose and will deliver the right 
priorities. 
Our main priority at this time remains the safety of our 
customers and staff and to deliver exceptional core 
services. 
 

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 

There are no specific equality and diversity matters 
arising from this report. Equality and diversity impact 
assessments are undertaken within all service 
improvement projects to ensure any issues are 
considered when designing and delivering our services. 
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Your Homes Newcastle 
 

D22 Business Strategy Update 
 

1. Purpose of report 
1.1 This report presents an update on the delivery of YHN’s Business Strategy 

Destination 2022. 
2. Background information 
2.1 In June 2018 the Board approved YHN’s Business Strategy Destination 2022, 

the strategy covers 3 years from April 2019 to March 2022.  
The Board developed the strategy via a Task and Finish Group of board 
members, who considered a range of factors including; the world we live in, 
internal/external drivers for change, role of the ALMO, Newcastle’s housing 
market and competitors, STAR survey, staff feedback from our “Gap year”, as 
well as NCC priorities and expectations.  
The strategy outlines our vision “To be first for housing” and our purpose “To 
make living easier”. More importantly it set out three strategic objectives which 
our transformation plans would be centred around, these were agreed by 
Board as: 

• Revolutionary services that support successful living 
• Amazing places where people are proud to live 
• Strong business fit for today, ready for tomorrow 

 
The whole strategy is underpinned by our values, Ready, Amazing, 
Revolutionary and Energetic (RARE). 

2.2 YHN was in a period of transformation, and Destination 2022 set out the 
ambitions to take this further, with the key emphasis being on improving the 
customer experience. The transformation plans were ambitious, and we 
started 2019 with 32 projects highlighted across the three strategic objectives 
to achieve key priorities for the business. 

2.3 A lot has been achieved in year one of the strategy (2019-2020) including;  

• new staff structures were designed, consulted on and implemented in 
Housing Services and Support Services,  

• the hub provision for customer service was transformed aligning 
services to NCC and co-locating teams,  

• a full review and remodelling of the then Concierge service to launch a 
new Caretaker service,  

• a new staff intranet was designed and launched giving staff up to date 
information with a fresh new look.  
  

2.4 When we developed Destination 2022, we knew that we would need to be 
flexible; ready to respond to the ever-changing world we live in. We wanted to 
become more agile, so that we could meet increased customer expectations, 
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and we were determined to embrace new digital ways of working to transform 
the customer experience. 
 
Never could we have imagined how much the world would change in early 
2020, with the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. Making living easier for our 
customers became more important than ever before. We had to completely 
change the way we worked in just a few short weeks.  
 
In March 2020, as we entered a national lockdown we focussed our resources 
on operating core services, some services paused and others were under 
great strain. Our business continuity planning framework implemented a Covid 
project team who led the planning and deployment of resources to ensure our 
customers were supported as much possible and we also assisted the City 
with their response. 
All Destination 2022 projects were put on hold to focus on delivering frontline 
services in a difficult situation. 

2.5 As a business we didn’t stand still even if our D22 ambitions were paused. 
Whilst what we planned in D22 didn’t progress other priorities emerged and 
we have been required to transform in other ways, all have seen great 
improvements for the business, staff and most importantly the customer. 

• New telephony system implemented across NCC and YHN estate, this 
was a complete upgrade and transfer to a new system to enhance our 
telephony capability. 

• Equipment and network capacity expanded and developed to facilitate 
94% of the workforce to home working. 60% of the workforce now have 
a corporate device to enable this to happen. This was from a stand-
point of only 24% being able to work from home with only 7% of staff 
having a corporate device. 

• Rollout, training and implementation of Microsoft Teams has given us 
greater digital efficiencies, and the ability to share documents and work 
collaboratively. 

• Invested in full rollout of Laptops for all staff in the Customer services 
directorate to increase agile working capability (220 laptops)  

• Data enabled mobile phones have been rolled out to all repairs and 
construction frontline operatives with associated training in Cyber 
security/GDPR and the use of email and MS Teams. This has created 
connectively to the frontline never experienced before. 

• Completed an Equalities and Diversity staff survey, dedicated time to 
develop our Staff Network Groups to fully support an inclusive 
workforce. 

• Continued emphasis on health and wellbeing support to staff 
• Two rounds of Community Spirit funding were launched in June and 

November to support local communities. 
 

2.6 As the first phase of the pandemic appeared to ease in the summer, lockdown 
restrictions were being reduced and service resumption was permitted, we 
took the opportunity to review Destination 2022 and re-calibrate the plans. We 
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recognised that since Covid-19 arrived, customers have different needs and 
there are new priorities. 
We needed to use our resources differently, provide Covid-19 secure and 
supportive workplaces for employees who need to come to work to deliver 
services, whilst supporting others to continue to work safely and productively 
from home. 
 
Our destination remained the same – we would continue to strive to be first for 
housing, by making living easier. However, we acknowledged that how we 
move forward, in this challenging environment, needed to change and we re-
routed our journey accordingly. The Directors team agreed an interim plan 
called Moving Forward, this update set out to our teams, our response to the 
pandemic, our progress so far on the D22 journey, and most importantly, our 
plans and priorities until the end of March 2021. 
 

2.7 12 priority projects were highlighted as the key projects that would bring 
benefit to the organisation both staff and customers 

1. Institute of Customer Service Accreditation 
2. One Contact Centre 
3. Housing Plus offer 
4. Digital offer to customers 
5. Customer service transformation 
6. Homelessness prevention 
7. BCE Transformation  
8. Asset Management Strategy 
9. Safe Living review 
10. Growth Strategy 
11. Performance / Data management Strategy 
12. People Strategy 

 
2.8 Lots of these projects have made progress even in the challenging year we 

have experienced, to the credit of our staff teams, delivering business as 
usual, dealing with Covid implications and undergoing transformation projects. 
Progress so far on Destination 2022 projects is outlined in the NCC Delivery 
Plan attached to Item 13 on this agenda. 

 Some examples of the progress made: 

• Scoping communication requirements with customers to help inform our 
new website, developing new online forms and processes to assist with 
the reduction of face to face service delivery. 

• ICS First Impressions customer service training undertaken by the 
contact centre staff and 4 members of staff trained as trainers for 
further roll out. 

• Think Big customer consultation re-started after a pause and will 
conclude shortly to inform our ICS accreditation journey. 

• Recruitment of 18 new staff in the contact centre and a programme of 
staff engagement and training sessions to develop the two teams 
coming together. 
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• Safe Living external review and additional resources to support service 
improvement. 

• Urban Foresight commissioned to undertake a digital technology review 
of the Ostara service. 

• Re-branded BCE to Repairs and Construction Services, new livery on 
vans and staff uniforms, mobile connectivity and development of the 
dynamic resource scheduling system. 

• Upgrade to our Apex asset management system to increase ability to 
undertake assessments to inform stock options. 

• Worked jointly with NCC on key workstreams to inform the new Asset 
management strategy. 

• Initial review of commercial operations undertaken and reported to F&P 
committee. 

• Following a staff survey to assess YHN response to the pandemic, our 
people priorities were re-assessed, and we designed and launched a 
new People Plan to support staff in new areas such as managing teams 
remotely.    

2.9 It was a clear direction from Board in 2019, that surplus reserves should be 
directed to accelerate our digital ambitions and investment in IT should be 
prioritised. 
As Board are aware the Director of Finance & Commercial who had previous 
leadership of our ICT service left the organisation in February 2020, and plans 
had not been fully developed or an IT Strategy agreed prior to their departure. 
From March 2020, ICT services has come under the Business Support 
function of the organisation, led by Jill Davison. 
Since the first lockdown in March 2020, the focus of IT services has been the 
deployment of equipment to facilitate home working for the business, and 
assisting the business with operational change to processes and systems to 
ensure service delivery was not affected by the pandemic. 
An interim IT Plan was written in the summer which focussed on ensuring the 
IT services provided the right equipment, the right applications, the right 
support in a secure environment.  
During the period of re-assessing the 12 priority projects for Moving Forward, 
work was undertaken to establish what resources maybe required to support 
the digital and IT ambitions of D22 and plans were shared with F&P 
committee. 
Digital plans still remain a priority as we enter another national lockdown, and 
we plan to engage consultants to move this work forward. This will ensure a 
clear roadmap is in place, in partnership with NCC, to ensure our digital and IT 
capabilities are fit for the future. 
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3. Issues and concerns 
3.1 At the end of last year, we could see the strain on teams, core service delivery 

was more important than ever, and our transformational projects were 
suffering from the lack of resource and capacity to fulfil them to the best of our 
ability. 

3.2 Whilst everyone was in need of a Christmas break to recharge and reenergise  
and were hopeful that coming back in 2021 things would have stabilised and 
that we would have hope the end to the pandemic was in sight, we 
unfortunately find ourselves in a third national lockdown. 

3.3 We also have the added pressure of staff coping with the demands of working 
from home alongside home schooling and we must be mindful of the 
pressures this puts on our staff. 

3.4 The world has changed, and staff and customers priorities have changed, so 
we feel we need to stop and take stock of our business strategy to ensure it is 
still fit for purpose and will deliver the right priorities. 
Our main priority is the safety of our customers and staff and to deliver 
exceptional core services. 

3.5 Aside from the Covid pandemic, there are other external factors which we now 
need to take into consideration as we review our operating environment such 
as Brexit, the Social Housing White Paper and Climate change. We also need 
to be mindful of the significant pressures on NCC and what contribution YHN 
will need to make to ensure services are aligned and that we drive out any 
inefficiencies and find new ways of working to make savings and 
improvements to our current partnership working.  

3.6 The executive team need to spend the next couple of months to reflect on the 
business strategy, what the new operating environment will look like for the 
sector, city and most importantly customers and come back to board in March 
with some proposals for discussion. 

3.7 Board members will note that Item 13 on the agenda presents the NCC 
Delivery Plan for 2021/22 for approval. This document is a requirement under 
the management agreement and sets out the context in terms of the previous 
year, focus for service improvement for the year ahead (our D22 ambitions), 
how we support NCC to meet the Regulatory standards, and it formalises the 
strategic performance indicators for 2021/22.  
 
Due to the timing of board meetings and the Cabinet cycle, we have prepared 
the document for approval by the board at this meeting, this is so it can be put 
to the NCC Cabinet in March. The narrative of the report is based around our 
Destination 2022 ambitions and our proposals for the each of the 12 priority 
projects, and whilst we are asking board to pause and review the priorities and 
focus, we will retain the ambitions in the Delivery Plan document. This 
document covers the whole year, and some of the outcomes may be able to 
resume and be achieved. 
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4. Conclusion and recommendations 
4.1 In conclusion, we are asking the Board to agree to put D22 transformational 

projects on hold to concentrate on customer and staff safety, going back to 
basics and delivering our core services well, whilst we review the future plans 
for 2021 and beyond. 

4.2 Board are recommended to: 
a) Note the contents of this update on the Business Strategy Destination 2022; 
b) Agree to pause and review future plans, and 
c) Contribute to discussion on the priorities for YHN to steer the executive 
team 

 
Background Papers 
- Destination 2022 
 
Contact Officer:  
If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the 
meeting, you can contact Jill Davison by telephone email: Jill.davison@yhn.org.uk  
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To be first for housing 
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26 January 2021 
 

 

 
DELIVERY PLAN 
OBJECTIVE 
 

N/A – statutory requirement 

STRATEGIC RISK 
REGISTER 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR5: Failure to comply with existing and new 
regulatory and reporting requirements 
 

LIKELIHOOD 1 (Rare) 
 

IMPACT 4 (High) 
 

FINANCIAL / VALUE FOR MONEY 
IMPLICATIONS 
 

This report summarises the group financial position for 
the period to 31 March 2020. 
 

CUSTOMER IMPACT / VIEWS There are no specific customer impacts arising from 
this report. 
 

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 

There are no specific equality and diversity 
considerations arising from this report. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

TITLE 
Annual Accounts and Financial 
Statements 2019-20 

AUTHOR Greg van Enk-Bones –Finance Director 

COMPANY Your Homes Newcastle and Abri Ltd 
ACTION REQUIRED  For Approval 
SUMMARY To approve the Annual Accounts for the Group and Abri Trading Ltd. 
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Your Homes Newcastle 
 

Annual Accounts and Financial Statements  
2019-20 

 
1. Purpose of report 

1.1 This report presents the Final Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 
2020 for: 

• YHN Company and Group (Appendix 1); and 
• Abri Trading Ltd (Appendix 2). 

They are supplemented by the audit opinions (Appendix 6) which will be inserted into 
the final sets of accounts. 

1.2 The Annual Accounts go through a structured approval process, with the table below 
setting out the provisional timetable for the 2019/20 Accounts: 

1 YHN finance staff produce the draft Annual Accounts  

2 The Reports and Statements are tested by the 
Independent External Auditors (EY) for errors and 
weaknesses in internal processes. 

 

3 EY produce a report of their initial findings (9 July 2020)  

4 Group Audit and Risk Committee (GARC) scrutinised the 
draft Annual Accounts and audit report and resolved to: 
i. Sign off the audit work to date 
ii. Approve the immaterial unadjusted differences 
presented, and 
iii. Allow the audit process to pause until the NCC audit 
has progressed to the point that EY have “sufficient 
comfort that NCC is in a viable position to provide such 
financial support to YHN Group for a minimum period for 
twelve months following approval of the 2019/20 
financial statements (9 July 2020). 

 

5 The Asfaleia Board, with reference to GARC’s 
recommendation, approve their Annual Accounts (23 
July 2020). 

 

6 EY produce an update of progress since 9 July. 
 

 

7 GARC scrutinise the update via correspondence and 
provide a recommendation to Boards. 
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8 The YHN Board approves the Group Annual Accounts 
as well as the Abri company Accounts (26 January 
2021). 

 

9 The Reports and Statements are presented to (or “laid 
before”) the shareholder in January 2021. 

 

10 The Reports and Statements are filed with Companies 
House and Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs 
(HMRC) (as appropriate). 

 

 

1.3 Due to delays outside of YHN’s control, some of the above steps have not taken 
place, or have been delayed. As there have been no significant changes to the 
accounts since the GARC review in July, we are now requesting that Board approve 
and sign off the annual accounts. There are no statutory implications related to the 
later signing the accounts, as Companies House extended the filing deadlines due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic. 

1.4 GARC’s role with regards to the Annual Accounts is to:  

• Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and any formal 
announcements relating to the company’s financial performance, reviewing 
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them; and 

• Review the narrative included in the Strategic Report and Directors Reports, to be 
recommended to the YHN and Asfaleia Boards for approval. 

 
The Committee must be satisfied that the information contained in the Accounts 
stand up to scrutiny and can be relied upon.  In practice this means that the 
Committee should: 

• Ensure there is a robust internal audit process to test the controls of the company 
• Ensure an external audit team is appointed to review the statements in detail, and 

receive their report 
• In doing so, ensure that the external audit team is independent; and 
• Review in detail the Annual Accounts and supporting information and question 

the Finance and Commercial Director or external auditors on any items that 
require explanation. 
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2. Background information 

2.1 All companies are required to produce Annual Accounts.  These will usually contain 
the following items: 

Directors’ Report Statements of Board’s responsibilities with regard 
to employees, equalities, controls, and disclosure 
of information to audit. The statement also includes 
the Board’s ‘going concern’ judgement. 

Strategic Report A review of the business for the past year and the 
year to come including performance against 
targets and the main risks considered by the 
company. 

Independent Auditors’ 
Report 

A statement from EY setting out the terms of 
reference of their audit, and their main findings. 

Comprehensive Income 
Statement 

The profit and losses of the company, throughout 
the year.  The outturn performance in this report is 
different to the figure reported to Finance and 
Performance Committee and Board, but this is due 
to the statutory accounts included additional 
accounting requirements, notably pension costs.  
There is a full reconciliation between the statutory 
and management accounts. See Section 2.2 below 
for a summary. 

Statement of Financial 
Position 

The balance sheet. This statement shows all the 
assets and liabilities on the 31st March. 

Cash Flow Statement This statement shows how the company has 
earned and spent cash during the year. 

Notes to the financial 
statements 

Notes to the three items above explaining the 
numbers in more detail and setting out the policies 
and judgements used when presenting financial 
figures. 
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2.2 The below table shows a reconciliation between the results reported at Q4 and 
scrutinised by the Finance and Performance Committee in May 2020 and those 
reported in the Financial statements. 

 Abri 
(£000’s) 

Asfaleia  
(£000’s) 

YHN 
(£000’s) 

Group  
(£000’s) 

P12/ Q4 Accounts  351 -508 1,038 881 

Depreciation adjustment     10 10 

Other adjustments 4   -2 2 

Lease interest     -15 -15 

Employee leave owed     -18 -18 

Pension deficit increase     -6,930 -6,930 

Taxation -31     -31 

Profit/ (loss) in the year end 
accounts  324 -508 -5,917 -6,099 

 

 
2.3 

 

At the GARC meeting on the 9th July the committee were presented with the 
following documents, which have also been attached as appendices to this report for 
the Board’s attention: 

Going concern assessment 
There is a requirement for a letter to the auditors evidencing to them YHN’s status as 
a going concern, which will be approved at the AGM. This is an assessment of going 
concern and liquidity risk by the Board.  EY requires evidence that cash flows for 12 
months following the date of signing the accounts demonstrate a going concern as 
this is a fundamental basis for the preparation of the accounts.  If it was not possible 
to demonstrate the going concern status, the assets and liabilities would have to be 
valued on a ‘winding up’ or emergency sell-off basis. 
See Appendix 3.   
Pension support Letter 
A key piece of evidence in the going concern assessment, NCC provides a letter of 
support confirming that increases to pension contribution rates in future will be 
covered by increases to the YHN management fee, and that in the unlikely event that 
YHN becomes insolvent, NCC will step in and subsume the pension deficit.  The 
letter gives the same assurances as previous years. 
See Appendix 4. 
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Letter of representation 
Each set of Annual Accounts is accompanied by the relevant Board’s letter of 
representation to the external auditors. This letter gives an undertaking to the 
auditors that all relevant information has been disclosed to them by Board.  EY have 
included a template letter in their report to us. 
See Appendix 5. 

2.4 The committee were also presented with an Audit progress report and the auditors 
highlighted the following points: 
• Unadjusted differences are not material, individually or when aggregated. 
• NCC agreement on the extension of loans to YHN is expected by the end of July. 
• The audit opinion will include a caveat in respect of COVID-19, in line with 

standard practice. This is not a qualification on the accounts but draws attention 
to underlying circumstances. 

• Procedures have been performed to test accounting policies and procedures and 
the risk of fraud or error and there are no significant issues to bring to the 
attention of the committee. 

• The two areas that prevent the accounts being signed off to the original timetable 
were: pension balances, where the triannual evaluation has been delayed due to 
COVID-19; and the on-gong concern assessment, which is reliant on the 
conclusion of audit work at NCC, which was also delayed due to COVID-19.  

• Committee will be updated on audit fees prior to signing off the accounts, once 
discussions at NCC have concluded. January update: Discussions are continuing 
regarding the finalisation of Audit fees. 

2.5 The Committee agreed to: 

• Sign off the work to date 
• Approve the immaterial unadjusted differences 
• Allow the audit process to pause until the Pension Fund and NCC audits have 

progressed sufficiently to allow EY to have “sufficient comfort that NCC is in a 
viable position to provide such financial support to YHN Group for a minimum 
period for twelve months following approval of the 2019/20 financial statements”. 

3. Updates  
3.1 There have been no significant changes made to the 2019/20 Financial Statements 

since they were presented to GARC in July.  The narrative has been updated to 
reflect the slightly improved position relating to the impact of Covid-19 (a forecast 
2020/21 negative impact of -£1.3m compared to -£1.8m in the previous version). 
 

3.2 Newcastle City Council Audit 
Background: At the time of the July committee Newcastle City Council had not yet 
concluded their year-end external audit.  NCC decided to utilise the extended year-
end deadlines provided by Companies House in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  
As the going concern assessment of YHN is heavily dependent on NCC being 
assessed, the final audit opinion for YHN was delayed awaiting the NCC audit 
conclusion. This would not usually be a problem for YHN, but because of the Covid-
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19 pandemic, auditors cannot place as much reliance on the support of NCC as they 
usually would.  
Current position: the NCC audit work is now complete and the NCC accounts have 
been signed off.  The auditors can place reliance on NCC’s going concern 
assessment and have signed off YHN’s going concern assessment. 

3.3 Pension Fund Year-end audit 
Background: YHN’s pension fund supplier, Tyne and Wear Pension Fund (“TWPF”), 
had not yet concluded their year-end external audit at the time of the July Committee 
(also conducted by YHN’s auditors, EY).  This had been delayed due to the Covid-19 
pandemic and restrictions to access onsite data. 
Current position: EY have now concluded their audit of TWPF and have provided 
assurances that the TWPF audit has concluded satisfactorily.  These assurances are 
documented in the YHN EY audit report. 

4. Board Options 

4.1 The Board has three options available: 
1. Board can accept that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the state 

of the Group, 
2. If Board has an issue of principle with the Annual Accounts, they can amend 

them.  This would require additional audit testing by EY, or 
3. Board can choose not to agree the Annual Accounts or sign the required letters of 

representation.  This would effectively imply that Board does not agree with the 
validity of the Annual Accounts 

5. Conclusion and recommendations 

5.1 YHN Board and Abri Trading Board are recommended to approve their respective 
items: 

• The Directors’ Reports, 
• The Strategic Reports, 
• The financial statements and notes, 
• The going concern assessment, and 
• The letters of representation. 

6. Implementation   

6.1 Once approved and signed by Board representatives, the Accounts will be  
1. Counter signed by EY, 
2. Laid before the shareholder, and 
3. Filed with Companies House and HMRC. 

Background Papers 
Year End Annual Accounts Audit Progress Update - 9 July 2020 (Group Audit and 
Risk Committee) 
Contact Officer: If you have any questions about this report that you would like 
clarifying before the meeting, you can contact Greg van Enk-Bones - telephone on 
07469 443904 or email greg.van.enk.bones@yhn.org.uk  
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Corporate Information 
Registered Office Address Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne,  

NE1 8PR 

Company registration The Company is incorporated as a private company 
limited by guarantee under the Companies Act 
(company number 5076256). 

YHN Board Members and Company Secretary  

Position                 Name Appointed 

Chair Noel Anthony Gates 1 January 2020  

Independent Board  
Members 

Paul Scope 

Malcolm Page 

Helen Simpson 

Kevin Lowry 

Lynne Blakey 

Anne Parker 

5 May 2015 

22 September 2015 

19 September 2017 

19 September 2017 

2 October 2019 

2 October 2019 

Council nominated Board 
members 

Joyce McCarty  

(Vice Chair) 

Linda Hobson 

Sylvia Copley 

Gareth Kane 

8 July 2014 

 

4 June 2019 

6 November 2019 

6 November 2019 

Co-optee members William Tebay 

Leisa Docherty 

1 February 2019 

27 September 2019 

Company Secretary Jill Davison  8 August 2017 
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Retired Directors in the year 

Position                 Name Retired 

Chair Jo Totton 5 August 2019 

Independent Board  
Members 
 

Elaine Snaith 

Richard Clark 

24 September 2019 

31 March 2020 

Council nominated 
members 

Alistair Chisholm 

Veronica Dunn 

Rob Higgins 

Doreen Huddart 

23 May 2019 

4 June 2019 

6 November 2019 

6 November 2019 

Chair of Group Audit and 
Risk Committee 

Richard Clark 31 March 2020 
 

  

   

YHN Advisors  
 

Internal Auditors Newcastle City Council  

 Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne, 
NE1 8BR 

External Auditors  Ernst and Young LLP   

 Citygate, St James’ Boulevard, Newcastle upon 
Tyne, NE1 4JD 

Solicitor Mr John Softly, Assistant Director – Legal Services 

 Chief Executive’s Office, Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, 
Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8BR  
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Strategic Report 
 

The members of the Board of Your Homes Newcastle Limited (trading as ‘YHN’) 
present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
The Group has chosen, in accordance with Section 414C(ii) of the Companies Act 
2006 to set out in the Strategic Report the following, which the directors believe to be 
of strategic importance: 

• Review of the business 
• Principal risks and uncertainties 
• Risk management strategy and mitigation plans 
• Future developments. 

 
Principal business 

The principal activity of YHN is the provision of housing management and 
improvement services to Newcastle City Council’s housing revenue account (‘HRA’) 
and other external organisations. 
 
In addition, YHN is also responsible for the delivery of housing related support 
services that improve the sustainability of tenancies and neighbourhoods and 
promote independent living across the City of Newcastle. 
 
As at 31 March 2020, YHN managed: 
 

• 25,120 council homes on behalf of Newcastle City Council; and 
• 752 homes on behalf of Leazes Homes. 

 
The YHN group includes a trading subsidiary – Abri Trading Limited – and a 
community benefit society – Asfaleia Limited. The latter has been recognised by 
HMRC as having charitable status.  
 
The principal activity of Abri Trading Limited is the rental and sale of home 
furnishings to social landlords and others, manufacture of beds and the installation of 
property insulation. The purpose and objectives are guided by those of the Parent 
company, Your Homes Newcastle Limited. 
 
The objects (purpose) of Asfaleia are to benefit the public by: 

i) the provision of relief of those in need by reason of poverty, homelessness, 
youth, age, family circumstance, unemployment, ill-health or any mental or 
physical disability; and 

ii) the promotion of education and training.  
 

Asfaleia is responsible for the provision of the activities of Support and Progression, 
Ostara, Housing Plus and Employability. These services are provided in the context 
of contracts with Your Homes Newcastle Limited and the Ostara service is also 
made available to the wider public. 
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Organisational structure 

YHN is a local authority controlled company (“arm’s length management organisation 
– ALMO”) under the control of Newcastle City Council, established with no share 
capital and limited by guarantee.  Newcastle City Council (NCC) has delegated to 
YHN responsibility for overseeing the management and maintenance of its 
residential stock and of HRA services provided to the City’s housing tenants.   
 
The YHN Group is structured as follows: 
 

 
Review of the Business 

The Board are operating under their Business Strategy - Destination 2022. Approved 
by the Board in December 2018, it sets a clear vision of being ‘first for housing’ and 
purpose of ‘making living easier’, underpinned by four guiding organisational values; 
ready, amazing, revolutionary and energetic.  
 
Three strategic objectives keep the strategy simple and clear: 

1) Revolutionary services that support successful living 
2) Amazing places where people are proud to live 
3) Strong business fit for today, ready for tomorrow 

 
YHN performance against the key performance indicators (KPIs) agreed with NCC, 
as part of the management agreement, was strong.  Five of the seven performance 
targets were achieved during the year, with one unrated and one not achieved.  
Details of the KPIs are set out in the following section.  The overall group financial 
position saw the budgetary targets being exceeded, with an in-year surplus on 
operations before the planned transformation costs and pension adjustments were 
applied.  
 

Your Homes Newcastle Ltd

Abri 
Trading Ltd

Group Audit & 
Risk 

Committee

Group Finance 
& 

Performance 
Committee

Asfaleia Ltd

Group 
Remuneration 

& 
Nominations 
Committee

Customer 
Service 

Committee

Health & 
Safety 

Committee
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Abri Trading Limited faced a number of challenging situations, with historical cyclical 
replacements being addressed, a number of NFS clients continuing to take a 
cautious approach as a result of Welfare Reform and a major private sector client 
entering into administration. Despite these challenge and impact upon turnover the 
service has continued to maintain profit levels. In addition, Palatine Beds has had 
positive year, operating ahead of budget as a result of delivering a large-scale 
contract. Furthermore, our Q-Bot service has stabilised following contract 
negotiations and operational maximisation. There are a number of positive proactive 
plans in place to capitalise on commercial activity in the housing sector and wider 
marketplace. 
 
Asfaleia Limited had a positive year, meeting or exceeding 4 out of 6 of the 
performance targets set. The Society recorded a deficit which was ahead of budget. 
 
How we do business 

YHN has a Management Agreement with NCC, which lasts for 10 years and 
commenced on 1 April 2016.  During the year YHN has continued to work closely 
with Elected Members and senior officers from NCC, being a true strategic partner 
for the Council, especially around housing matters. 
 
Section 172 (1) Statement 

The Directors of YHN are mindful of their duties as outlined in Section 172 (1) of the 
Companies Act 2006, which is to act in a way they consider, in good faith, would be 
most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as 
a whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst other matters) to – 
 

(a) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term; 
(b) The interests of the company’s employees; 
(c) The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, 

customers and others; 
(d) The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the 

environment; 
(e) The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of 

business conduct; and 
(f) The need to act fairly as possible between members of the company  

Whilst retaining main responsibility for the company, the Board delegates the 
operational day to day running of the organisation to the Managing Director and their 
Executive Team, subject to defined limits as outlined in the matters reserved 
sections of the Group Governance Handbook. The Handbook details the overarching 
corporate governance framework, which includes principles specifying: 
 

• The relationships between the Board, sole shareholder NCC and the 
Executive Team; 

• Conduct of Board affairs; and 
• The powers delegated to subsidiaries and committees 
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Upon appointment, all directors receive an induction to the company by the Chair, 
Governance Team and Executive Team, at which: 

• Their duties with regards to s.172 (1) matters are outlined; 
• Key stakeholders are identified; 
• What principal decisions are likely to be made by the Board; 
• The policies and processes in place to ensure decision making considers 

stakeholders; and  
• How the above fits within the context of the Management Agreement and 

relationship between NCC and Your Homes Newcastle Limited in managing 
council housing stock 

Decisions taken by directors in discharging their s.172 (1) duty and in considering 
the wider impact on reputation and stakeholders to deliver the principal activity of 
YHN are outlined below, including where key stakeholder groups were involved 
and/or considered in making those decisions. 

(a) The Likely Consequences of any Decision in the Long Term 
The Board regularly receive progress updates on the 3 year business strategy 
‘Destination 2022’ which encapsulates the elements of the fast-moving environment 
in which the company operates, including financial and economic landscapes, 
government spotlight on social housing, changing demographics and housing need, 
and the customer experience.  
 
The 10-year Asset Management Strategy is delivered through an investment 
programme, which consists of key expenditure blocks which have been developed to 
ensure delivery against key priorities, such as new build, remodelling, stock reviews 
and provision for non-general needs housing. Quarterly updates to Board cover the 
outturn on spend and targets, budget allocation across the programme, and any 
difficulties encountered in the planning of the programme due to financial or 
operational issues. 
 
The Board consider and approve the annual Delivery Plan, which aims to provide 
assurances that the company is delivering across all areas of the Management 
Agreement by setting out priorities for improving services and strategic targets 
agreed with Newcastle City Council to assess whether business critical areas are on 
track. 
 
Review of the Group’s performance on a quarterly basis is delegated to the Finance 
and Performance Committee. The Executive team monitor the strategic targets, as 
well as the operational targets that underpin them to ensure that YHN delivers the 
projects that have been agreed to implement the Business Strategy Destination 
2022. 
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The annual review and approval of the strategic risk register, risk management 
framework and risk appetite statement are a matter reserved to the YHN Board. The 
Group Audit and Risk Committee monitors the Group’s register, internal financial 
controls and risk management framework on behalf of the Board on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
The Board hold two strategic away days per year, at which they receive updates 
from the Executive Team on progress against the three main business strategy 
objectives and consider upcoming challenges to the company. At the June away 
day, directors discussed risk appetite facilitated by a risk specialist, and the ongoing 
transformation of customer service, following a presentation of achievements in the 
service area and results of a customer survey, facilitated by the Institute of Customer 
Service. At the December away day, directors discussed the vision and strategy for 
ICT. 
 
In considering long term impacts, all Board and committee reports outline how the 
content is likely to affect not just the company but also stakeholders, including: 

• Delivery plan objectives; 
• Related risks; 
• Financial and value for money implications; 
• Customer impacts/views; 
• Equality and diversity 

More recently, the Board received an update on the implications and impacts of 
Covid-19 for the company which explained the enormity of the current tasks and 
challenges ahead, the key areas affecting customers, and where the Board could 
provide support through this period of uncertainty. 
 
(b) The Interests of the Company's Employees 
YHN recognise it is the responsibility of Board members, the leadership team, 
employees and others who represent the company to embed commitments to 
equality, diversity and inclusion in everyday work. 
 
In May 2018, the Board approved the company Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
policy. It set out the framework for how equality duties will be met, outlining 
objectives and actions to be taken to achieve them.  
 
Further information on how directors and the Executive Team have considered 
employees’ and their interests to inform the business strategy and principal decisions 
can be found in the ‘Our Employees’ section of the Directors Report at page 22.  
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 (c) The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, 
customers and others 
 
To ascertain their views, the company has in place a strategy for regularly 
communicating information about its work to stakeholders, having regard to the 
communication needs of the diverse groups and communities it serves. This 
includes: 
 

• Information published on the organisation’s website and social media 
platforms 

• Social media accounts are used to communicate and engage with a range of 
stakeholders 

• All customers receive a copy of the quarterly publication ‘Homes and People’ 
• Work with the Institute of Customer Service on a project involving customers, 

to improve services to transform the customer experience 
• A framework is in place for the Executive Team and NCC to regularly review 

performance against strategic and operational targets. Progress is reported 
quarterly to the Finance and Performance Committee 

• Senior representatives of the sole shareholder NCC attend Board and 
committee meetings regularly 

• The Chief Executive of NCC attends a Board meeting annually to discuss the 
business relationship, successes and opportunities for closer working 

• Outside of the formal meeting structure, the Chief Executive of NCC, the 
Managing Director of YHN and the Chair maintain an open dialogue 

• The ‘Think Big’ customer engagement and consultation project (see page 23) 
 

In 2017, the Board approved the creation of a Customer Service Committee to: 

• strengthen the tenant voice in influencing decision making throughout the 
company and to feed back the tenants’ voice to the Board; 

• Understand and improve the customer experience; and 
• Understand new innovations in customer service and explore how Your 

Homes Newcastle Limited can use these to improve services 
 
As of 2019/2020, there are 15 members of the Committee, all of whom are tenants. 
As part of delegations, the Committee receive complaints information to understand 
and identify ways to improve the customer experience. There is a feedback 
arrangement in place between the Committee and the Board to ensure both parties 
are updated on business and customer related activity, including having an 
independent Board member who is also a tenant part of the membership of both the 
Board and the Committee, and dedicating time with the Committee at one of the 
strategic away days to discuss performance and opportunities. 
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Part of Destination 2022 includes a commitment to put customer service and 
experience at the heart of service improvement by achieving Institute of Customer 
Service accreditation. The ‘Think Big’ project is a customer insight project owned and 
developed by the Customer Service Committee that aims to support the 
accreditation process. The Committee has started conducting customer insight on 
issues that matter most to them and will be providing an update to the Board.  
Further information on this significant part of the business strategy can be found in 
the Employee Communication section of the Director’s report on page 22. 
 
YHN works with the Fairer Housing Unit of NCC and community partner 
organisations to actively engage with tenants and leaseholders in operational 
housing matters such as repairs and maintenance, capital works, and strategic 
engagement matters such as changes to legislation or policy that could have an 
impact on rent or property allocation. 
 
A Corporate Procurement Strategy sets out the direction of procurement of all works, 
goods and services with the aim of ensuring the process is effective and positively 
contributes to strategic objectives and service improvements for customers. 
Contractors and suppliers are also supplied with Equality and Diversity guidance, 
which has been developed to make sure that our contractual activity is consistent 
with our obligations under equality legislation. To ensure that we meet our legal 
obligations regardless of who carries out our functions we build equality 
considerations into each stage of our procurement process. 
 
 (d) The impact of the company's operations on the community and the 
environment 
Annually, as part of the budget process, the Board approve the allocation of funds to 
support community investment projects, which aim to improve the quality of life for 
customers and create a more stable, cohesive and sustainable community. It is 
evaluated using the Social Return on Investment tool, to monitor the impact the 
project has on individuals and wider community.  
 
In September, the Board reviewed a sustainability report outlining the economic, 
environmental and socially responsible activities implemented across the 
organisation and their impact to date, including recycling, transportation, energy 
usage, production efficiencies and the company’s supported employer approach. 
They will monitor the progress of a joint climate change steering group in developing 
a Climate Change Strategy which supports NCC’s aim to achieve zero carbon 
emissions by 2030.  
 
As referenced earlier in (a) the Investment Delivery Programme, with NCC and 
partner organisations, is helping tackle the lack of supply of social housing in the 
region through new build and modernisation. Through this partnership, the company 
is able to support customer groups for whom there is a lack of housing, namely 
learning-disabled people, those with additional care needs, older people and young 
families. 
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The company offers an employability scheme to tenants to provide work experience, 
apprenticeships, training, and support to progress into work or further education. A 
target has been linked to the scheme, that at least 85% of Your Homes Your Jobs 
trainees and apprentices move into education, training or employment. It is 
monitored quarterly by the Finance and Performance Committee.  
 
As mentioned earlier, the organisation operates a supported employer approach to 
provide job opportunities to people with disabilities. The majority of the workforce at 
the company mattress production facility Palatine have a disability and are 
recognised for playing an integral part of the busy commercial operations side of the 
business and as such the company is recognised as a ‘Disability Confident’ 
employer.  
 
The company is fully committed to the principles of sustainable procurement, through 
the YHN Sustainable Procurement Charter, which considers social, economic and 
environmental issues at all stages of the procurement process and as part of the 
whole life cost of a contract. This is achieved by ensuring that sustainability 
considerations are embedded within procurement processes and use of purchasing 
power to promote good practice. 
 
The company has a Safe Living service in support of NCC’s safeguarding 
responsibilities for the community as a public authority. The service has two teams; 
Safe Living, who managed anti-social behaviour cases and Safeguarding 
Partnerships, supporting those who are at risk of harm. The latter work with partner 
agencies such as the Police to protect customers who are categorised as being at 
high risk of harm. They represent the company at multi agency and public protection 
meetings to share information linked to public safety and risk assess vulnerable 
client groups. Safeguarding updates and progress of a Safeguarding Action Plan are 
considered bi-annually by the Group Audit and Risk Committee and annually by the 
Board. 
 
(e)The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards 
of business conduct 
The company’s Articles of Association is the document that sets out the purpose of 
the company and the rules for the internal governance and management of the 
company. It is reviewed by the Board regularly to ensure it is fit for purpose within 
the changing landscape. Committees of the YHN Group have written terms of 
reference outlining their remit and powers delegated to them from the YHN Group 
Board. These are reviewed on an annual basis and any proposed amendments are 
approved by the Board. 
 
The Board adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance in 
February 2017, which supports housing associations in promoting good governance 
practices. By adopting the code, there is a requirement to produce a statement of 
compliance against the provisions of the Code within the annual 
report and financial statements. Results of a self-assessment against the Code is 
considered at each May Board meeting, with a proposed statement of compliance 
submitted for approval. The 2019-2020 statement can be found on page 26. 
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As part of regular reviews of governance arrangements, the Board considered a 
report on a variety of matters at their away day in June, covering meetings, shaping 
of agendas, performance, risk, and learning and development. Recommendations 
were approved and an action plan created. Following their appointment in January, 
the Chair held introductory meetings with members to understand individual skills 
and strengths and has identified areas for a revised learning and development plan 
for 2020.  
 
The Board have a proactive relationship with the Company Secretary, who attends 
all Board meetings to advise as necessary on matters relating to directors’ s. 172 (1) 
duties and responsibilities, scope of powers and authority to take decisions. All 
Board and committee meetings are formally minuted and submitted to members for 
approval as a true and correct account of proceedings at the following meeting. 
 
On an annual basis, the Board consider and approve the company Modern Slavery 
Statement, which affirms that the organisation is aware of the issue and is taking 
effective steps to stop modern day slavery occurring through purchasing and 
procurement practices in its supply chains. 
 
The company will not tolerate fraud and corruption in the administration of its 
responsibilities. Board members and staff at all levels are expected to 
lead by example in ensuring legal requirements, policies, codes of conduct, 
rules and procedures are followed. The company also expects that all partners with 
whom it comes into contact will act with integrity and without thought or 
actions involving fraud and corruption. A Policy and Statement outlines that: 

• YHN values its reputation for ethical behaviour and robust financial probity and 
reliability; 

• Is committed to achieving the highest standards of good practice and good 
governance; 

• The Board and Senior Management Team take a zero-tolerance approach to 
bribery and corruption 

The Chair of Group Audit and Risk Committee conducts an annual review of all 
offers of gifts and hospitality made to staff and Board members. In November, the 
Chair confirmed that they have no concerns about the register, there were no 
inappropriate entries and the records are well kept. 
 
The directors must observe the YHN Board Member Code of Conduct, and other 
arrangements put in place to assure good governance whenever they conduct the 
business of the organisation as its representative. They have a duty to act in the best 
interests of the organisation, demonstrating openness and transparency, and are 
aware that they must not put themselves in a position where there is conflict between 
their personal interests and the duty they owe to YHN. The Code is made available 
during induction and includes communication protocol outside of meetings and the 
process by which breaches are investigated and adjudicated. 
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All Board Members complete and sign an annual declaration of interests, which is 
held with the statutory books by the Company Secretary and is open for public 
inspection. This is in addition to the requirement to declare any interests at the 
commencement of Board and committee meetings. 
 
Following the Grenfell Tower tragedy and the creation of a staff taskforce and 
director forum to focus on health and safety, YHN sought to further recognise the 
importance by formalising a new committee as part of the governance structure in 
June. The Health and Safety Committee discuss matters relating to health and safety 
in the organisation, recommend appropriate actions to the Board or management, 
and provides assurances and challenges to the Board that there are proper systems 
and allocations of responsibility in key areas of the organisation for health and 
safety. 
 
The Board and Executive Team recognise the importance of compliance with the 
General Data Protection Regulation 2018 and of the work and resources that have 
deemed it necessary to ensure this.  A Data Protection Policy was approved in July 
2019 which sets out how the company will handle the personal data of customers, 
suppliers, employees, workers and other third parties to ensure compliance with data 
protection laws. Progress is reported annually via an activity plan. Organisational 
awareness and compliance is monitored by the Executive Team.   
 
The company is fully aware of the responsibility towards customers, employees and 
the communities in which it operates, and is committed to ensuring the working 
conditions in our supply chain are safe, that workers are treated with dignity and 
respect and that manufacturing processes are environmentally responsible. For this 
purpose a Supplier Code of Conduct has been produced, which sets the standards 
for doing business with the company. 
 
(f) The need to act fairly as between members of the company 
The Articles of Association outline the extent of the operating powers of the company 
under the control of NCC and the conditions under which the company must seek 
council consent to pursue actions outside of such powers. 
 
In discharging their duties, the Directors consider which course of action best 
enables delivery of the strategy in the long-term, taking into consideration the sole 
shareholder and the impact on stakeholders. 
 
Article 26 of the Articles of Association outlines the identification and, where 
appropriate, management of conflicts or potential conflicts of interest. At each Board 
and committee meeting, the Board considers a register of interests and potential 
conflicts of Directors and gives, when appropriate, any necessary approvals. There 
are safeguards which will apply when Directors consider a conflict or potential 
conflict, with only those Directors who have no interest in the matter taking the 
decision. No conflicts of interest have been identified during the year. 
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Key Performance Indicators 

The following table highlights our performance against our management agreement 
commitments with NCC.  

Target theme  2019-20 target 2019-20 actual 

HRA programme board satisfied with 
delivery of R&M service 

 Satisfied Satisfied 

Customers satisfied with repairs and 
maintenance service 

93% 93.2% 

HRA programme board satisfaction with 
delivery of the capital programme 

Satisfied Satisfied 

Rent collected from current and former 
tenants 

97.31% 98.82% 

Tenancy turnover under 8.6% 8.46% 7.38% 

Overall void rent loss not to exceed 
1.57% 

1.57% 1.70% 

Budget target achieved Achieved Achieved 

 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

YHN has a well-established assurance framework which, along with audit, 
performance management, accreditation and service reviews, includes risk 
management. A strategic risk register is maintained which outlines the most 
significant risks to the achievement of our business objectives. The strategic risk 
register highlights the perceived threat level of a risk, the controls in place to mitigate 
the risks and the actions required to improve the controls. The assurance framework 
and the strategic risk register are applied across the YHN group. 
 
The current approach to the management of strategic risks via the framework 
consists of: 

• Annual review of the register approved by the Board; and 
• Quarterly monitoring of the strategic risk register by the Group Audit and Risk 

Committee with Board updates provided following each meeting. 

In order to assess risk, the likelihood of a risk is assessed against its potential 
impact.  The assessment generates a score which in turn is assigned a traffic light 
(red, amber or green) based on controls that YHN has in place.  The current risk 
register was approved by Board in July 2020, following a review of the Groups’ 
approach to risk management by Group Audit and Risk Committee, to further 
enhance local arrangements. 
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Risk Appetite Statement  

We have no appetite for safety risk exposure that could result in injury or loss of life 
to public, customers and staff. Safety drives all major decisions in the organisation. 
All safety targets are met and improved year-on-year.  
 
Overall, in the pursuit of strategic objectives, we are willing to accept, in some 
circumstances, risks that may result in a minor financial loss. 
 
There is an appetite to transform services and activities whilst working to strict 
budgets. There is a commitment to innovation and planned expansion of commercial 
activities in order to strengthen our overall financial position. This should be on a 
strict business planning basis and speculative investment is to be avoided.  In 
relation to commercial and innovation, there is a willingness to accept, in some 
circumstances, risks that may result in a moderate financial loss. 
 
We will only tolerate minor exposure to delivery of strategic and operational 
performance targets including disaster recovery and succession planning, 
breakdown in information systems or information integrity.  
 
The company wants to be seen as best in class and respected across the sector. It 
will not accept any negative impact on reputation with its key stakeholder, and will 
only tolerate minimum exposure i.e., minor negative media coverage, no impact on 
employees, and no political impacts. Similarly, as a semi-public body we will not 
tolerate behaviours which fall below the highest standards of conduct from Board, 
staff, partners, contractors and suppliers. 
 
YHN and its subsidiaries have a robust risk management strategy in place which 
flows from the strategic risks identified in the risk register. Set out below are the key 
mitigation measures which address the fundamental risk to financial stability and 
continuity. 
 
Financial Risk Management Policy 

YHN currently holds no complex financial instruments.  The majority of cash 
balances are held at Newcastle City Council.  Other financial assets and liabilities, 
such as trade creditors and related party balances, arise directly from the 
organisation's operating activities. The main risks associated with YHN's financial 
assets and liabilities are set out below. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 

YHN received interest from Newcastle City Council relating to cash held on its 
behalf.  Financial assets, liabilities, interest income and cash flows can be affected 
by movements in interest rates. The Board Members do not consider there to be any 
significant exposure. 
 
Credit Risk 

During the financial year YHN received almost its entire turnover from Newcastle 
City Council and payment terms are 30 days from the date of invoice.  Individual 
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exposures and overdue debts are monitored, with customers subject to credit limits 
to ensure that YHN's exposure to bad debts is not significant. 
 
Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities. The group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by 
managing cash generation by its operations, applying cash collection targets 
throughout the group. The group also manages liquidity risk via revolving credit 
facilities and loan funding from NCC. 
 
Foreign Currency Risk 

YHN does not engage in any foreign currency transactions. All of its activities take 
place within the United Kingdom and consequently, YHN is not exposed to any 
foreign currency risk. 
 
Impact of Coronavirus 

Since the Covid-19 lockdown was announced in March 2020, YHN has supported 
customers, colleagues and partners to deliver effective and efficient services across 
all areas. The health and wellbeing of our employees and customers has been the 
priority focus for YHN as we look to support Newcastle City Council in combined 
efforts to tackle the pandemic. 
 
As a result, services provided by YHN have been transformed; our existing Business 
Continuity plan has been adapted and new policies have been created to suit the 
unique challenges posed by Covid-19.  
 
As customers adapt to the restrictions imposed as a result of Covid-19, our teams 
have been extremely flexible and have developed a proactive and reactive approach 
to support. Welfare calls to our customers have ensured that they are safe and well.  
Up to 14 May, 17,637 proactive welfare calls have been made to customers.   
 
The customer experience has remained our focus with regular proactive support 
initiatives, and communications. Feedback from customers has confirmed positivity 
around welfare calls and services being provided. We will be looking to gain insight 
into customers views through a customer survey at an appropriate time, as their 
views will help us shape the future delivery of our services. 
 
The initial estimated impact of Covid-19 on the Group Finances is £1.3m worse than 
budgeted surplus for 2020/21, meaning the result for the year would be a deficit of 
around £800k, before adjustments for pensions and transformation. Predictions over 
the next five years show financial performance recovers to achieve a surplus by 
March 2022 and achieves target levels by March 2024. 
 
Neither cash nor reserves balances are predicted to be fully exhausted in the current 
5-year forecast, therefore the Board expect the impact of Covid-19 to be absorbed 
without taking any mitigating actions such as restricting investment programmes or 
considering further borrowing. 
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Future Developments 

Our future development is strongly led by our Business Strategy – Destination 2022. 
Outlined below, under each strategic objective is a summary of progress and 
priorities for the coming year; 
 
Revolutionary services which support successful living 

• In April 2019, the former NCC Contact Centre and YHN Enquiry Centre 
came together to create a single contact centre, led by YHN. We reduced 
customer wait times, matched staffing levels to demand and introduced 
revised opening hours. Further improvements planned for 2020/21 include 
investment in telephony, the launch of a single customer contact number 
and new branding for the contact centre service 

• In 2019/20 we started work towards achieving Institute of Customer 
Service (ICS) Service Mark.  ‘First Impressions’ customer service training 
for frontline staff from the Contact Centre and the Hubs has already 
begun.  In 2020/21 we will train ‘in-house’ trainers and roll-out training to 
the wider organisation 

• In 2020/21 we will begin to develop an improved customer focused digital 
offer including a new website and customer portal 

• We will establish a dedicated complaints team (within our wider Customer 
Services Team.) A key part of their role will be to identify and share 
learning on complaints which will inform service improvement 

• In 2019/20, we transformed our Hub provision and changed the way in 
which services are delivered to improve the customer journey.  In 2020/21, 
we will embed new ways of working and processes to ensure that 
customers receive a consistent and streamlined service throughout their 
customer journey 

• In 2019/20, we commissioned the Housing Learning and Improvement 
Network to carry out an independent review of our older person’s service 
offer. Having now developed our new Housing Plus vision, we are working 
closely with partners to develop our offer for customers which we aim 
to launch during 2020-21 

Amazing places where people are proud to live 

• We are working with NCC to finalise a newly, updated and fit 
for purpose Asset Management Strategy which will support NCC in making 
best use and getting the best value from its stock  

• In 2020/21, to improve the customer experience, value for money and 
further embed the ‘one team’ approach of the repairs, maintenance and 
construction services, we are planning: 
 Significant investment in technology and software to support service 

improvement and software packages for the Programming and 
Resource Planning and Estimating and Surveying sections of BCE, 

 Rebranding of the service including uniforms and vehicles 
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 Implementation of a dynamic resource scheduling package to increase 
the efficiency and effectiveness of the repair and maintenance service, 
improving the customer experience and reducing the carbon footprint. 

• In 2020/21, we will continue to embed and develop our new safe living 
approach.  Our newly established Safe Living Team have already 
launched ‘end-to-end’ investigation of anti-social behaviour and zonal 
working.  New roles within the team will increase the focus on support, 
prevention and safeguarding and we will also seek Domestic Abuse 
Housing Alliance (DAHA) accreditation 

• Following an independent review of the Tyne and Wear Homes Choice 
Based Lettings Scheme, the partnership has agreed to develop one 
common allocation policy document and update its IT systems, so 
simplifying the customer journey.  In 2020/21, we will introduce a slicker, 
faster lettings process, in Newcastle, following a whole system review of 
existing arrangements 
 

Strong business fit for today, ready for tomorrow 

• During 2020/21, we will continue to develop our new IT Strategy, focusing 
on investment in infrastructure and enabling our workforce to embrace 
agile working and the demands of the digital agenda to support customers 
through the transition 

• Two years ago, we developed out first People Strategy to set out our plans 
for our workforce.  To continue this work, we are developing a second 
People Strategy which will include a focus on training and development, 
internal communication and health and well-being 

• Building on the success of existing commercial activities including Q-Bot 
(an innovative way of installing insulation beneath the floor using robots) 
and NFS (provider of affordable furniture and furnished accommodation to 
social housing customers), we will develop a new Commercial Plan during 
2020/21. In 2020-21, we will continue to develop our performance 
management framework, learning from best practice across the region and 
within the sector.  This will involve developing our technical solutions; 
increasing our capabilities and knowledge and developing ‘big data’.  As a 
result, we aim to have more efficient and robust corporate performance 
reporting 

 
As we begin to resume more services, following the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
we are now revisiting our business model and re-assessing our priorities to ensure 
we continue to make living easier for our customers even at the most unprecedented 
of times. 
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Dissolution of Subsidiary Asfaleia Limited 

In June 2019, the members of Asfaleia Limited joined with the Your Homes 
Newcastle Limited Board for their six monthly strategic away day. They were 
presented with a report regarding potential efficiencies through revision of the group 
structure.  
 
On 24 October 2019 the Asfaleia Limited Board agreed in principle to the dissolution, 
and delegated oversight of the due diligence process to a working group of trustees, 
members, officers and professional advisors.  
The working group met between November 2019 to February 2020, and presented a 
final summary report at both meetings of both Asfaleia Limited and Your Homes 
Newcastle Limited on 24 March 2020. The report confirmed that: 

• Financial position is accurate, and all assets and liabilities have been 
appropriately accounted for. 

• The Trustees have governed the company appropriately and within the duties 
of a trustee of a community benefit society. 

• Business as a going concern is to transfer, and all contracts and grants are 
appropriately novated.  

• No employment issues have arisen from the dissolution, as all employees are 
aware their position is with YHN. 

• No reputational risks have been encountered due to the dissolution process 
and all customer communications, standards and relationships have been 
maintain.  

• The transfer of business to Abri Trading Limited and Your Homes Newcastle 
Limited will take place on 1 April. 

• The dissolution will take place once audited accounts are available when the 
instrument of dissolution, audited accounts and annual return will be filed with 
the FCA. 
 

Safety of residents 

The safety of residents still remains a high priority for YHN, and whilst lots of work 
has been completed over the last year in relation to fire safety, we never stop looking 
for ways to continually improve. YHN is a member of the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) group (Social Sector (Building 
Safety) Engagement Best Practice Group ) established to improve communication 
on building safety issues between social landlords and tenants.   
 
YHN appointed a Building Safety Manager to oversee fire safety compliance, 
respond to escalated customer safety concerns and liaise with the Tyne and Wear 
Fire and Rescue Service through the Primary Authority Scheme.  
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Closer working with NCC on construction, repairs and maintenance 
 
YHN formally assumed responsibility of Newcastle City Council’s repairs and 
construction service, known as Building and Commercial Enterprise (BCE), on 1st 
August 2018. A Memorandum of Understanding was agreed by both parties to 
outline the relationship and working arrangements, which affirms that whilst YHN 
now oversees the operation, NCC remain the employer and ultimately responsible 
for the service. A transformation programme was launched during 2019/20 focussing 
on enhancing the customer experience of the service whilst improving financial and 
non-financial performance. The transformation programme has introduced new IT for 
front line staff, and a management review is currently ongoing. 
 
The strategic report was approved by the Board on 26 January 2021 and signed on 
its behalf on DATE by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noel Anthony Gates    Jill Davison 
Chair       Company Secretary 
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Directors’ Report  
 
The members of the Board of Your Homes Newcastle Limited (trading as ‘YHN’) 
present their directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
Interests of Board Members 

YHN is a private company limited by guarantee which is wholly controlled by the 
local authority, Newcastle City Council.  Four Board members are Newcastle City 
Councillors. The remaining eight Board members are independently appointed, and 
all financial transactions are carried out under normal commercial terms. 
 
In establishing and monitoring the strategy, the Board considers the impact of its 
decisions on wider stakeholders including Newcastle City Council, tenants, 
employees, suppliers and the environment. 
 
Our Employees  
 
Employee Communication and Involvement  

We use many different channels to ensure our internal communications engage staff 
with corporate messages, as well as provide opportunities for them to provide 
feedback and share their own ideas and news.   
 
Communication channels include our intranet, a new version of which was launched 
in July 2019. The content includes regular internal news articles, blogs and vlogs 
from the Executive team and staff across the business, information on staff forums, 
plus collaborative working areas and the option to personalise alerts and feeds.  
  
The intranet is supported by weekly e-newsletters to staff containing a broad range 
of articles to keep colleagues up to date with organisational news, raise awareness 
of  issues and inform staff about the wider social and political landscape in which we 
operate, as well as lighter topics to boost morale and foster a sense of community 
among colleagues.  
 
We have also recently implemented a digital staff survey system, which allows 
regular targeted feedback on areas of interest to be obtained. This operates 
alongside the annual Institute of Customer Service staff survey, which was first 
implemented in November 2019 following a multi-channel internal communications 
campaign. The staff feedback from all surveying mechanisms is centrally collated 
and shared with the Executive team before results and action plans are fed back to 
staff.  
 
YHN’s digital channels are supported by more traditional methods such as posters, 
emails, screensavers to ensure we reach all staff and provide information in an 
integrated way.  Frontline staff now also receive regular updates by text. When 
designing internal communications campaigns, we take care to match 
communications channels to corporate objectives. 
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Staff events and workshops also form part of the internal communications mix. The 
Executive team front an annual all staff event, gathering staff together to update on 
business strategy, while offering opportunity for feedback and questions. In addition, 
regular workshops and feedback sessions have been held with managers and staff 
to both communicate strategy as well as seek feedback and suggestions for service 
improvements. 
 
In addition, we have a formal annual appraisal mechanism that includes regular 1-2-
1s for all staff to receive feedback on their performance, identify training needs and 
gain an understanding of how their targets feed into the achievement of the 
organisation’s goals. There are also formal and informal communication and 
consultation mechanisms with trade unions. 
 
Customer Engagement 

YHN takes a multi-tiered approach to customer engagement, combining traditional 
face-to-face engagement with a developing digital engagement strategy.   
 
Customer Service Committee 

The Customer Service Committee forms part of the formal governance structure and 
is the co-ordinating hub for all customer engagement activity, reporting directly into 
the Board. 
 
Over the last year we have increased the membership of the Customer Service 
Committee from 10 to 14 volunteers as a way of increasing its capacity to deal with 
larger scale projects without placing too many demands on members’ time.  
 
Last year members were involved in a range of engagement activities, both locally 
and nationally. This included hosting drop-in sessions in community hubs during 
Customer Service Week, speaking at a national governance conference and acting 
as customer representatives on the MHCLG’s post Grenfell resident engagement 
and building safety best practice group. The Committee also sent representatives to 
become part of the new regional group – North East Tenant Voice (NETV). 
 
Think Big project 
 
The committee have also taken on a new role as Discoverers – leading on the Think 
Big insight project. The committee are supported by an independent organisation to 
lead on large-scale customer consultation. Having the support of an independent 
organisation ensures the committee feel empowered to shape the project with the 
customer in mind and ask challenging questions of YHN, while also serving as an 
opportunity to develop their individual engagement skills.  
 
The Think Big project and the insight it brings will play a key role in YHN achieving 
Institute of Customer Service Accreditation and realising its Destination 2022 goal. 
So far, the project has seen the committee develop seven key areas they perceive 
as being key to the customer experience. Initial focus groups with customer and staff 
have been held, feedback collated, and emerging themes identified. 
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The next phase (temporarily on hold due to Covid-19) will see wide-scale customer 
consultation through a microsite and paper surveys. The insight gained from the 
consultation will then be collated and further developed through customer and staff 
workshops, resulting in comprehensive customer-centric proposals for service 
improvements over both the long and short term. 
 
Engagement in local communities 

In 2019 engagement officers adopted a new way of working as a way of increasing 
our presence in local communities, offering more face-to-face engagement for 
customers who may not be online and in turn getting to know our customers better. 
Each officer now has a designated patch based on our hub areas, hosting a drop-in 
session once a month either in a hub or other community projects across their patch. 
Prior to the Covid-19 outbreak, the team also planned to expand drop-in sessions to 
sheltered and supported housing schemes. 
 
The engagement team also regularly run customer workshops and journey mapping 
sessions to gain insight into projects that form part of YHN’s Destination 2020 
strategy. Workshops in 2019 included consultation on the development of a brand for 
the new contact centre, the complaints process and the development of the new 
YHN website. 
 
Face-to-face engagement is also used frequently to monitor progress and offer 
support to projects supported by the Community Investment Fund. As part of the 
funding, project community groups are encouraged to attend an annual event where 
they can meet each other as well as YHN staff and share ideas, building the support 
network available to YHN customers. 
 
Digital engagement 

Chit Chat is YHN’s customer engagement group on Facebook, sitting alongside the 
main YHN Facebook page. The group has almost 600 customers, with many using 
the forum to report repairs, ask questions about YHN services or ask advice of other 
customers. Some Customer Service Committee members have taken on the role of 
informal moderators, answering customer queries and signposting to the right 
service.  
 
While much of the content is customer driven, we use this group to advertise events 
and carry out digital consultations and surveys. A focussed push on advertising the 
group as part of Customer Service Week in 2019 saw an increase in engagement. 
This promotion work will continue through 2020. 
Our Facebook presence is supported by wider digital engagement opportunities 
including text and email surveys and consultations. Email surveys topics in 2019 
included fire safety (as part of the MHCLG project work) and anti-social behaviour. 
Where necessary digital survey work is supported by telephone surveys to ensure 
the inclusion of residents who may not have access to email or websites. 
 
In 2019 we also undertook our first ICS customer survey. The survey was conducted 
both digitally and face-to-face and the results fed back into an action plan, the 
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progress on which is monitored by the ICS as part of the three-year accreditation 
process. 
 
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights 

At YHN, we value, celebrate and embrace Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI).  
We aim to be an organisation where Equality, Diversity and Inclusion is part of who 
we are and how we work.  We want to meet our legal and regulatory equality duties, 
not just because we have to but because it is the right thing to do and good for our 
organisation. 
 
We want to build an inclusive and supportive workplace where every-one can bring 
their whole self to work and succeed in being their best:  
• We are Stonewall Diversity Champions and work to create an inclusive 

environment for our lesbian, gay, bi and trans colleagues  
• We are a ‘disability confident’ employer (the successor to the ‘two ticks scheme’) 

and a signatory to the ‘Mindful Employer’ charter;  
• We support well-developed and active staff diversity network groups – 

Proud@YHN, the Multi-Cultural Staff Network Group and vis-Able; 
• We have an active staff health and wellbeing group which promotes a range of 

health and wellbeing issues; 
• We actively recruit people living in the homes we manage through our ‘Your 

Homes Your Jobs’ and apprenticeships 
• YHN is doing well at attracting and retaining women at the most senior levels of 

the organisation. More than half of our roles at Assistant Director level and 
above, including our Managing Director, are undertaken by women.  This is 
reflected in YHN’s gender pay gap results 2019 which show a different picture to 
those nationally.  The national median hourly pay rate shows that women earn 
17.3% less than men.  Our median hourly pay for women was 17% higher than 
for men Our mean hourly pay for women was 5.6% higher than for men. 

As an organisation, we will continue to explore how we can take action to support 
and increase under-represented groups in YHN’s workforce. 
 
We aim to provide services that are accessible to the communities we serve and 
meet their needs We implement policies, practices and procedures that actively 
promote equality, diversity and human rights and support the elimination of barriers 
that prevent fairness for all of our employees and customers.  We consider equality 
and diversity implications as part of our decision making. 
 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report 
and financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in 
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 
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Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the 
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the profit or 
loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the 
directors are required to: 

• Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, 

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 

• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business. 

 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are 
sufficient to show and explain the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Board takes its responsibilities in relation to bribery seriously and continues to 
support initiatives to emphasise the organisation’s anti-corruption culture. 
 
National Housing Federation Code of Governance 

The Board have adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance – 
promoting excellence for housing associations. An annual assessment is undertaken 
to review arrangements are clear and effective. 
 
A compliance checklist exercise is conducted, which involves evaluation of the 
following areas: 

• Constitution and composition of the Board 
• Essential functions of the Board, including duties and responsibilities 
• Board skills, renewal and review 
• Conduct of Board and Committee business 
• Audit and risk 
• The Managing Director; working arrangements with the Board  
• Conduct, probity and openness 

Having reviewed the checklist, the Board are satisfied that high standards of 
corporate governance are being upheld and concluded that the YHN Group is 
compliant with all areas of the Code. 
 
Future developments affecting the balance sheet 
The Board considers that there have been no events since the financial year end 
that have had a significant effect on the financial position.  
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Going Concern 

Having made enquiries, the Board consider that the Company’s current and future 
prospects and its availability of financing are adequate to enable it to continue  
business for the foreseeable future and that they are also satisfied that the Company 
can continue to pay its liabilities as they fall due for a period of at least 12 months 
from the date of approval of these financial statements. 
 
The Board consider that a robust going concern assessment process was 
undertaken and the results discussed and challenged formally at the Group Audit 
and Risk Committee on 9 July 2020.  At that meeting the Audit and Risk Committee 
recommended that the Board should endorse these annual accounts. 
 
The process for determining whether or not the Company is a going concern 
involved a number of considerations including an assessment of the financial 
budgets and forecasts for YHN to March 2022, in the context of the current business 
strategy ‘Destination 2022’ and in the light of the management agreement between 
YHN and Newcastle City Council, as endorsed by Cabinet in January 2016. The 
outlook also considered the continued and possible further effects of Welfare Reform 
as well as the estimated impact of Covid-19 on the Group Finances. This period is 
considered to be the ‘foreseeable future’ as required for this ongoing assessment 
only and is in accordance with company law and accounting rules. 
 
The assessment also considered the solvency and liquidity risks involved in 
delivering the financial forecasts for the foreseeable future. Neither cash nor 
reserves balances are predicted to fall to a level that would threaten our ability to 
operate as a going concern. The Board expect the impact of Covid-19 to be 
absorbed without taking any of the mitigating actions, such as restricting investment 
programmes or considering further borrowing. There is deemed to be no risk to 
YHN’s liquidity and solvency risks in the year.  
 
The Company has net liabilities of £24,632,000 (2019: £18,532,000), including a 
pension deficit of £33,250,000 (2019: £26,320,000). The Company has a 
management agreement in place with Newcastle City Council which underpins the 
Company’s budgets and forecasts, which show that the Company is expected to be 
able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, in particular, for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial 
statements. These budgets and forecasts include contributions payable to the 
pension scheme on the current agreed contribution schedule, which has been drawn 
up by the actuary on the basis of a 22-year schedule for the recovery of the deficit. 
 
In addition, the Company has received confirmation from Newcastle City Council that 
the Council would assist Your Homes Newcastle in meeting its liabilities as and 
when they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise available to YHN to 
meet such liabilities. For this reason, the Board continues to adopt the going concern 
basis of preparation for these financial statements. 
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Disclosure of information to auditors  
 
All of the Board members, appointed at the date upon which these report and 
accounts were approved, were not aware of any relevant audit information which 
was required by the auditors in connection with the preparation of the report and 
accounts, of which the auditor was unaware.  Having made enquiries of fellow Board 
members and YHN’s auditors, each Board member has taken all the steps that 
he/she is obliged to take as a member of the Board in order to make himself/herself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of 
that information. 
 
Auditors 
EY LLP are the external auditors of Your Homes Newcastle Limited for the period 
2019-20.  
 
The Directors report of the members of the Board was considered and approved by 
the Board on 26 January 2021 and signed on its behalf on DATE by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noel Anthony Gates    Jill Davison 
Chair       Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF YOUR HOMES NEWCASTLE 
LIMITED 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Your Homes Newcastle Limited (‘the parent company’) 
and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Group 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, The Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group Statement of Financial Position, the Company Statement 
of Financial Position, the Group Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes 1 to 22, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020
and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

• the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

29
Page 57



financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

• the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or directors’ report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and

returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors 

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the 
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to 
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

[Signature] 
Richard Lingwood (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Newcastle upon Tyne 

January 2021 
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Financial Statements

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Income 2 36,839 36,038 

Operating costs 3 (39,023) (40,899)

Operating profit/(loss) 4 (2,184) (4,861)

(Loss)/Gain on disposal of fixed assets (33) 16 
Interest receivable and other income 7a 6 5 
Interest payable and other charges 7b (928) (916)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (3,139) (5,756)

Taxation 8 (31) (6)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year (3,170) (5,762)

Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension 20 (2,930) 6,330 

Total comprehensive gain for the period (6,100) 568 

All amounts relate to continuing activities in the period.

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 
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Financial Statements
(continued)

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2020

£000

(19,100)
Total comprehensive gain for the year 568 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (18,532)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,100)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (24,632)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2019

£000

(21,132)
Total comprehensive gain for the year 357 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (20,775)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (5,917)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (26,692)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

Profit and 
loss 

Profit and 
loss 

Balance as at 1 April 2018
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Financial Statements
(continued)

Group Statement of Cash Flows
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2020

2,020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Net cash flow from operating activites 18 (114) 4,567 

Investing activities
Interest received 5 15 
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (1,507) (1,468)
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets 45 23 

Net cash flow from investing activities (1,457) (1,430)

Financing activities
Interest paid (307) (295)
New/(repayment of) finance leases 474 (125)

Net cash flow from financing activities 167 (420)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,404) 2,717 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 6,779 4,062 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 5,375 6,779 

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 
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Financial Statements
(continued)

Group Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020 Registered Company No: 5076256

2,020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 5,380 4,443 

5,380 4,443 
Current assets
Stocks 11 488 537 
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 12 9,985 6,495 
Cash at bank and in hand 5,375 6,779 

15,848 13,811 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due in less than 
one year 13 (5,605) (3,909)
Net current assets 10,243 9,902 
Total assets less current liabilities 15,623 14,345 
Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one 
year 14 (7,005) (6,557)

Net assets excluding pension liability 8,618 7,788 
Defined benefit pension liability 20 (33,250) (26,320)
Net liabilities (24,632) (18,532)
Reserves and capital
Profit and loss reserve (24,632) (18,532)

(24,632) (18,532)

Signed on behalf of the Board

Noel Anthony Gates
Chair 

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 
26 January 2021.
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Financial Statements
(continued)

Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020 Registered Company No: 5076256

2,020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 4,060 3,098
Other investments 10 3,900 3,900

7,960 6,998
Current assets
Stocks 11 219 182
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 12 7,883 8,544
Cash at bank and in hand 1,238 2,951

9,340 11,677

Less Creditors: amounts falling due in less than 
one year 13 (3,737) (6,573)
Net current assets 5,603 5,104
Total assets less current liabilities 13,563 12,102
Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one 
year 14 (7,005) (6,557)

Net assets excluding pension liability 6,558 5,545
Defined benefit pension liability 20 (33,250) (26,320)
Net liabilities (26,692) (20,775)
Reserves and capital
Profit and loss reserve (26,692) (20,775)

(26,692) (20,775)

Noel Anthony Gates
Chair 

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 
26 January 2021. Signed on the Board's behalf:

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of 
the Companies Act and not presented a statement of comprehensive income for the 
Company alone. The loss for the year is £5,917,000 (2019: £357,000 gain).

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

36
Page 64



Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Statement of Compliance 

1.2 Basis of preparation

1.3 Basis of consolidation

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

Your Homes Newcastle was incorporated and is registered in Newcastle upon Tyne, England 
under the Companies Act 2006 (Registered Number 5076256). The Registered Office is Civic 
Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle Upon Tyne, NE1 8PR.  The principal place of business is YHN 
House, Benton Park Road, Newcastle upon Tyne NE7 7LX. 

Your Homes Newcastle Limited is a company limited by guarantee and does not have any share 
capital.  There is only one “member” of the organisation.  That “member” is Newcastle City Council 
(NCC) and the Company’s articles of association state that no other person other than the Council 
Member shall be admitted to membership of the organisation.

2019-20 

In the lead company financial statements, investments in Abri Trading Limited and Asfaleia
Limited are accounted for at cost less impairment.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with 
FRS102 as it applies to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 January 2021.  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.  
The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the group and 
rounded to the nearest £’000, or where applicable nearest £'m.

The Group statement of comprehensive incomes include the results and cash flows of: 
•  Asfaleia Limited for the 12-month period from 1 April 2019 and
•  Abri Trading Limited for the 12-month period from 1 April 2019.

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Your Homes Newcastle 
Limited, Abri Trading Limited and Asfaleia Limited for the year ended 31 March.  
Abri Trading Limited and Asfaleia Limited are consolidated with YHN Limited from the date trading 
commenced, and will continue to be consolidated until the date that trading ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.4 Going concern

The Group has net liabilities of £24,632,000 (2019 : £18,532,000 )
 including a pension deficit of 

  
£33,250,000 (2019 : £26,320,000 )

Coronavirus

2019-20  Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which assumes 
that the Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and meet its 
liabilities as they fall due.

In addition, the Group has received confirmation from Newcastle City Council that the Council 
would assist Your Homes Newcastle (“YHN”) in meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due, to 
the extent that money is not otherwise available to YHN to meet such liabilities. Accordingly, the 
directors of the Group believe that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern, on the grounds that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Company has a management agreement in place with Newcastle City Council which 
underpins the Group’s budgets and forecasts which show that the Company is expected to be 
able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, in particular, for a period of at 
least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements.  These budgets and 
forecasts include contributions payable to the pension scheme on the current agreed contribution 
schedule which has been drawn up by the actuary on the basis of a 22-year schedule for recovery 
of the deficit.  

Since the Covid-19 lockdown was announced in March 2020, YHN has supported customers, 
colleagues and partners to deliver effective and efficient services across all areas. The health and 
wellbeing of our employees and customers has been the priority focus for YHN as we look to 
support Newcastle City Council in combined efforts to tackle the pandemic.

As a result, services provided by YHN have been transformed; our existing Business Continuity 
plan has been adapted and new policies have been created to suit the unique challenges posed 
by Covid-19. As customers adapt to the restrictions imposed as a result of Covid-19, our teams 
have been extremely flexible and have developed a proactive and reactive approach to support. 
Welfare calls to our customers have ensured that they are safe and well.  Up to 14 May, 17,637 
proactive welfare calls have been made to customers.  

The customer experience has remained our focus with regular proactive support initiatives, and 
communications. Feedback from customers has confirmed positivity around welfare calls and 
services being provided. We will be looking to gain insight into customers views through a 
customer survey at an appropriate time, as their views will help us shape the future delivery of our 
services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.4 Going Concern (continued)

1.5 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Provisions

Operating and Finance Lease Commitments

Pension costs

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities 
at the balance sheet date, and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the 
period. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those 
estimates. The following judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty have had the most 
significant effect on the financial statements:

A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.  There can be estimation involved in determining the provision to be made.

As a lessee, the Group obtains use of plant and equipment.  The classification of such leases as 
operating or finance lease commitments requires the Group to determine, based on evaluation of 
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, whether it acquires the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires a liability to be 
recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost of a defined benefit pension plan is determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial 
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality 
rates and future pension increases.  Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying 
assumptions and the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest 
rates of high quality bonds with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of 
the defined benefit obligation.   The mortality rate is based on the recent actual mortality 
experience within the Fund and allows for expected future mortality rates.  Future salary increase 
and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the UK.  Further details are 
given in note 20.

The initial estimated impact of Covid-19 on the Group Finances is £1.8m worse than budgeted 
surplus for 2020/21, meaning the result for the year would be a deficit of around £1.3m, before 
adjustments for pensions and transformation. Predictions over the next five years show financial 
performance recovers to achieve a surplus by March 2022 and achieves target levels by March 
2024.

N ith h  b l di t d t  b  f ll  h t d i  th t 5

 Coronovirus continued
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Recoverability of stock and debtors

• The loan agreements with Newcastle City Council do not contain two way break clauses
and are therefore recognised at amortised historical cost.

• Interest paid on the loans is on a fixed rate basis.

2019-20  Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

Where there are indicators of slow moving or obsolete stock or slow recovery of debtors, the 
Society assesses whether a provision is required based on the assessment of the individual items 
and historic knowledge.

1.5 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Where there are indicators of impairment of individual assets, the Group performs impairment 
tests based on fair value less costs to sell or a value in use calculation.  The fair value less costs 
to sell is based on observable market prices, less incremental costs for disposing of an asset.  The 
value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model.  The cash flows are derived 
from the budget for the next three years, and does not include significant future investments that 
will enhance the performance of the cash generating asset that is being tested.  The recoverable 
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, as well as 
the expected future cash flows and growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Taxation
Judgement is required when determining the provision for taxes. Tax benefits are not recognised 
unless it is probable that the benefit will be obtained. Tax provisions are made if it is possible that 
a liability will arise. The Group reviews each significant tax liability or benefit to assess the 
appropriate accounting treatment. Management estimation is required to determine the amount of 
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon likely timing and level of future profits.

Determination of financial instruments as basic 
There is judgement in determining whether financial instruments meet the definition of basic or 
complex in accordance with Section 11 of FRS 102.
Management has determined that the Group and Company’s financial instruments are deemed as 
basic on the basis of the following:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1. disposed and recorded as a disposal with no proceeds, or
2. returned to the Parent’s stock where it is held at the net book value of the asset at the time

of its return. A fixed asset disposal is recorded .

All repair costs for items within inventory are minor and are expensed as they arise.

The YHN Group uses a global fixed asset register across NFS to control the assets of Abri 
Trading and the Parent undertaking.  To clarify the transactions to the reader, and to aid the 
reconciliation of the Financial Statements to the asset register, additional lines have been added 
to the fixed asset register to show the additions and disposals within the Group.

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

Presentation of fixed assets

1.5 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fixed assets accounting 
The Parent undertaking's fixed assets are comprised of items of furniture rented to Newcastle City 
Council under the NFS brand, ICT equipment, office equipment following the refurbishment of 
YHN House, leasehold improvements of the YHN warehouse and the YHN fleet held under lease.

The Group’s fixed assets are comprised of the items above and furniture rented to other landlords 
in Abri Trading, and Ostara alarm equipment in Asfaleia Ltd.

Palatine Beds
Inventory is held within Abri Trading for raw materials and finished goods held in relation to sales 
under the Palatine Beds and 1907 brands.  See note 1.6 for information on stock valuations.

Overview of NFS (Newcastle Furniture Service) Brand
NFS operations are split between Your Homes Newcastle and Abri Trading.  Resources and fixed 
assets employed to deliver furniture services to Newcastle City Council are recorded in the 
Parent’s accounts.  Commercial contracts with other landlords are delivered by Abri Trading.

Asset purchases and transfers
All furniture is initially purchased by the Parent undertaking, where it is held at cost price as 
inventory.  Subsequently, when an item of furniture is rented out to an Abri Trading customer, a 
purchase from the Parent is recorded.  The furniture is then held within Abri Trading as a fixed 
asset and held at historic cost less depreciation.  The sale is not expensed in the Parent’s income 
statement.
If the item is rented out under the Newcastle City Council contract, the furniture is recorded as a 
fixed asset within the Parent and held at historic cost less depreciation.
If a customer returns an item of furniture (from either a YHN or Abri Trading contract), an 
assessment is made of the condition of the asset and it is either
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.6 Significant accounting policies

Sale of goods

Rendering of services

Interest Income

Government Grants

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the group obtains the right to consideration in exchange 
for its performance.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, 
excluding discounts, rebates and VAT.  The following criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognised:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods, the amount of revenue 
can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the entity, and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of management services is recognised, according to the individual 
contract, by:

· Reference to labour hours incurred to date; or
· Fee per unit managed.

· Fixed fee per period; or

Where contract income cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Government grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be received 
and that all related conditions will be met, usually on submission of a valid claim for payment.  
Grants are of a revenue nature, and as such are credited to income so as to match them with the 
expenditure to which they relate.

1.5 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Ostara
Asfaleia holds stock and fixed assets in relation to its Ostara care alarm services.  These assets 
take the form of remote alarms, key safes and other support equipment.  
Supplies of equipment that have not been allocated to a customer are held as stock at cost price.  
Once an item is allocated to a customer it is transferred from stock to fixed assets and is held at 
depreciated cost value.  If an item is returned by a customer, an assessment is made of the 
condition of the asset and it is either disposed, or returned to stock where it is held at the net book 
value of the asset at the time of its return.  

All repair costs to items are minor, and are expensed as they arise.  Sales from stock are recorded 
as a cost of sale and expensed to the income statement.

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

Revenue Recognition
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

• Equipment - over 1 ½ to 10 years
• Leasehold improvements - over 5 to 18 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Short-term debtors and creditors

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether an asset may be impaired.  If any such 
indication exists, the Group estimates recoverable amount of the asset.  If it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use.  If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount through an impairment in profit 
and loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount where the impairment loss of a revalued 
asset is a revaluation decrease. 
An impairment loss recognised for all assets is reversed in a subsequent period if, and only if, the 
reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply.

2019-20 

Debtors and creditors, with no stated interest rate, receivable or payable within one year are 
recorded at transaction price.  Any losses arising from any associated impairment are recognised 
in the income statement in other operating expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand, and short 
term deposits with an original maturity date of three months or less.  For the purpose of the 
consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above.

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Such cost includes costs directly 
attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.  

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, at rates calculated to write off the 
asset on a systematic basis over its expected useful life as follows: 

43
Page 71



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Stocks

Taxation

Deferred Tax

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the periods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences which are differences between 
taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and 
expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the 
financial statements except that:

· Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that the
directors consider that it probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits.

· Where there are differences between amounts that can be deducted for tax for assets and
liabilities compared with the amounts that are recognised for those assets and liabilities in a
business combination a deferred tax asset shall be recognised; and

The Group establishes provisions based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of 
audits by the UK tax authorities.  The amount of such provision is based on various factors, such 
as differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the tax authority.

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs include all costs incurred in 
bringing each product to its present location and condition, as follows:

· Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale - purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis

Stocks comprise NFS furniture holdings at the parent company, "Ostara" alarm equipment within 
Asfaleia and raw materials and finished goods for Palatine Beds within Abri Trading Ltd.

· Work in progress and finished goods – cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads based on a normal level of activity
· Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leasing and hire purchase commitments

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Pensions benefits
The company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, through membership of the 
Tyne and Wear Pension Fund.  The scheme is a final salary pension scheme (‘defined benefit’) 
where retirement benefits to employees of the Company are funded by contributions from all 
participating employers and employees in the scheme.  The cost of providing benefits under the 
defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit 
method, which attributes entitlement to benefits to the current period (to determine current service 
cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine the present value of defined benefit 
obligations) and is based on actuarial advice.   The net interest element is determined by 
multiplying the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, at the start of the period taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution 
and benefit payments. 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the statement of comprehensive income 
on a straight line basis over the lease term.  Lease incentives are recognised over the lease term 
on a straight line basis.

Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset have passed to the Group, and hire purchase contracts are capitalised 
in the balance sheet and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s useful 
life.  A corresponding liability is recognised for the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and 
the present value of the minimum lease payments in the balance sheet.  Lease payments are 
apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the statement of 
comprehensive income so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability.

All interest bearing loans and borrowings which are basic financial instruments are initially 
recognised at the present value of cash payable to the lender (including interest).  After initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less 
impairment. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance revenue in the statement 
of comprehensive income.

 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

2 . Analysis of Group Turnover
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Housing management fees 29,437 30,153 
Sales of goods 401 604 
Other income 7,001 5,281 

36,839 36,038 

3
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Employee costs 26,150 28,934 
Premises costs 1,579 1,320 
Transport costs 801 825 
Supplies & services 6,371 6,004 
Depreciation 1,695 1,476 
Bad debt expense (32) 95 
Stock and materials expensed 2,005 1,458 
Fixed asset write-offs 454 787 

39,023 40,899 

4
This is stated after charging: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Depreciation of tangible assets 1,695 1,476 
Operating leases 610 538 
Fixed asset write-offs 454 787 
Stock and materials expensed 2,005 1,458 
Auditors’ fees:
     For audit services 20 20 
     For non-audit services 5 15 

. Analysis of Group Operating Costs

. Group Operating Profit/ (loss)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

5 . Employee information
a) Staff costs

2020 2019
No's No's

Housing management 536 555 
Administration and clerical 126 123 

662 678 

Costs for the above employees were: 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 18,606 18,058 
Social security costs 1,609 1,539 
Employers pension contributions 2,555 2,847 
Past and current pension service costs above cash 
contributions 3,380 6,490 

26,150 28,934 

b) Directors’ emoluments 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments payable to directors (including 
pension contribution and benefits in kind) 47 47 

The full time equivalent number of staff who received 
emoluments in the following bandings are: 2020 2019

No's No's
£60,001 to £70,000 4 8 
£70,001 to £80,000 2 3 
£80,001 to £90,000 3 7 
£90,001 to £100,000 1 5 
£100,001 to £110,000 1 1 
£110,001 to £120,000 - - 
£120,001 to £130,000 - 3 
£130,001 to £140,000 1 1 
£140,001 to £150,000 1 1 

13 29 
The 2020 figures include 3 employees whose emoluments include severance 
payments (2019: 20 employees).

The average number of persons employed during the
year, expressed as equivalent of whole time employees
was:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

6 . Key Management Personnel

7
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Interest on balances held at NCC 6 5 
6 5 

7
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Loans from NCC 293 293 
Finance charges payable under leases 15 3 
Interest on net pension liability 620 620 

928 916 

b. Interest payable and similar charges

a. Interest receivable

Four YHN Board Members are Newcastle City Councillors.  The Councillors do not use 
their position as YHN Board Members to gain any commercial advantage.  Where 
conflicts do arise they are fully disclosed either in advance of a Board/Committee 
meeting or at such a meeting.  If appropriate the Councillor would leave the meeting to 
enable the matter to be discussed in their absence thereby avoiding a conflict of interest.

All directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group are considered to be key 
management personnel.  Total remuneration in respect of these individuals is £584,000 
(2019: £515,000 - restated to include National Insurance contributions).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was one YHN Board Member who was a 
NCC housing tenant.  Any Board member tenancies are granted on normal commercial 
terms.  Tenant Board Members do not use their position to gain any commercial 
advantage.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

8
Group
a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities
The tax charge is made up as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Current tax:
80 - 

- - 
80 - 

(49) - 
6 

(49) 6 

Total tax per income statement 31 6 

b) Tax charge reconciled to total comprehensive income
The tax charge is made up as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £’000

(3,139) (5,756)

(596) (1,094)
1 1 

(99) (246)
(585) 15 

(557) 1,204 

1,866 126 
31 6 

c) Factors affecting future tax charges

. Tax

UK Corporation tax on profits for the period

Fixed asset timing differences
Effects of not taxable income and expenditure
Tax rate changes

Total current tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences

Total deferred tax

Loss on ordinary activities before tax

Adjustment in respect of previous periods

Effect of changes in tax rates

Deferred tax:

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of 
corporation tax of 19%

Amounts (charged)/credited directly to the statement of 
comprehensive income or otherwise transferred
Deferred tax not recognised

The standard rate of UK corporation tax for the period was 19.00% (2019: 19.00%). A
reduction in the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted prior to the
balance sheet date.

Tax charge for the period
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

9
Total

Equipment
Group £'000

7,823 
1,507 
1,462 

(1,635)
9,156 

Depreciation and impairment:
(3,380)
(1,695)

196 
1,103 

(3,776)
Net book value:

5,380 
4,443 

Total
Equipment

Company £'000
Cost:
At 1 April 2019 5,222 
Additions 1,395 

862 
Disposals (1,035)

6,444 
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 April 2019 (2,124)
Provided during the year (1,125)

83 
Disposals 782 

(2,384)
Net book value:

4,060 
3,098 

Disposals and write offs

Disposals and write offs
Net transfer to/from inventory

Net transfer to/from inventory

At 31 March 2020

.Tangible Assets

At 1 April 2019
Provided during the year

At 1 April 2019
Additions

Cost:

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2020
As at 1 April 2019

As at 31 March 2020

Net transfer to/from inventory

Net transfer to/from inventory

As at 1 April 2019

At 31 March 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

9

10 . Investments
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Company
Loans to other Group companies 3,900 3,900 

3,900 3,900 
Loans to group companies were made at prevailing rates on a fixed interest basis.  The 
fair value of the investment is deemed to be the underlying loan principle.

.Tangible Assets (continued)

Included within the group net book value of £5,380,000 is £616,000 (2019 - £159,000) 
relating to assets held under a finance lease.  The depreciation charged to the financial 
statements in the year in respect of such assets amounted to £136,000 (2019 - 
£99,000).

See note 1.5 for further information on fixed asset transactions and presentation.

51
Page 79



 Your Homes Newcastle Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 31 March 2020

11
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Group
Raw materials and consumables 136 156 
Finished goods 352 381 

488 537 

Company
Finished goods 219 182 

219 182 

12
2020 2019

Group £'000 £'000
Amounts owed from NCC 7,331 3,564 
Trade debtors 1,034 1,212 
Prepayments and accrued income 959 1,412 
Tax asset 356 307 

305 - 
9,985 6,495 

2020 2019
Company £'000 £'000
Amounts owed from YHN Group companies 1,486 4,950 
Amounts owed from NCC 5,744 2,526 
Trade debtors 85 95 
Prepayments and accrued income 568 973 

7,883 8,544 

Other Tax and Social Security

. Stock

The difference between purchase price or production cost of stocks and their 
replacement value is not material.

. Debtors

Stocks recognised as an expense in the period were £2,005,000 for the Group (2019: 
£1,458,000) and £247,000 for the parent (2019: £40,000).

Stock values are shown net of a stock provision value of £42,000 (2019: £21,000).
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13
2020 2019

Group £'000 £'000
Creditors and other accruals 1,556 1,326 

1,151 780 
Amounts due to NCC 2,033 1,024 
Income in advance 248 14 
Interest accrual due to NCC 122 122 
Redundancy and other pay provisions 301 555 
Tax liability 80 - 

114 88 
5,605 3,909 

2020 2019
Company £'000 £'000
Creditors and other accruals 1,410 1,092 
Other Tax and Social Security 1,152 778 
Amounts due to NCC 318 928 
Income in advance 236 14 
Amounts due to other YHN Group companies 84 2,996 
Interest accrual due to NCC 122 122 
Redundancy and other pay provisions 301 555 

114 88 
3,737 6,573 

Other Tax and Social Security

. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Amounts due in respect of finance leases held with NCC 
(Note 16)

Amounts due in respect of finance leases held with NCC 
(Note 16)
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14 . Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2020 2019

Group and Company £'000 £'000
Amounts due in respect of finance leases held with NCC (Note 
16) 505 57 
Loans from NCC (Note 15) 6,500 6,500 

7,005 6,557 

15 . Loans
2020 2019

Group and Company £'000 £'000
Loans from NCC 6,500 6,500 

6,500 6,500 

16 . Other financial commitments
The Group and Company use finance leases to acquire 
vehicles. 
Future minimum lease payments due under finance leases:

2020 2019
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Within one year 139 93 
In two to five years 413 65 
In over five years 236 - 

788 158
Less: future interest charges (170) (13)

618 145
Analysed:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 114 88 
Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one year 504 57 

Interest is payable on amounts owed to parent undertakings at rates of 4.5% per 
annum. The loan is repayable in 2020 and is shown in Creditors falling due in more than 
one year.
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17 . Financial instruments
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Group financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Obligations under finance lease (note 16) 618 145 
Loans from parent undertaking (note 15) 6,500 6,500 

Group financial liabilities measured at cost:
Trade creditors 197 251 
Interest payable 122 122 
Accruals 3,963 2,338 

Group financial assets measured at cost:
Trade debtors (note 12) 1,210 1,533 
Other debtors 8,045 4,330 
Cash 5,375 6,779 

18 . Notes to the statement of cash flows
a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash flow from
operating activities

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Group profit/(loss) for the year (3,170) (5,762)

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible fixed assets 1,695 1,476 
Net increase in fixed assets from stock transfers (1,657) (2,030)
Impairment and write off of fixed assets 454 722 
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of tangible fixed assets 33 (16)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (3,490) 4,888 
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 49 (52)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 2,144 (2,050)

Adjustments for investing or financing activities:
Interest payable 308 296 
(New)/repayment of finance leases (474)
Interest on defined benefit pension net liability 620 620 
Interest receivable (6) (5)
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 3,380 6,490 
Corporation tax paid - (10)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (114) 4,567

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand only.
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19 . Related party transactions

Group

Entities with significant influence over the group

Newcastle City Council (NCC)

During the year the Group entered into transactions in the ordinary course of business 
with other related parties.

The Company is a local authority controlled company within the meaning of Part V of 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, being a company under the control of 
NCC.  Copies of the financial statements are available on request from Civic Centre, 
Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8PR.

Leazes Homes Limited

Company

YHN is a major supplier to Leazes Homes Limited.

The related parties of the parent company are the same as those considered for the 
Group with the addition of the other Group undertakings; Asfaleia Ltd and Abri Trading 
Ltd. The transactions entered into and the trading balances outstanding at 31 March for 
the Parent and Group are set out as follows:

The Directors consider that NCC is the ultimate controlling party.

With the exception of petty cash and some sundry income and expenditure 
transactions, all cash book payments and receipts are made via NCC's banking 
intermediaries, with the net balance owing to, or from, the City Council being disclosed 
as a current asset or liability as appropriate.

Entities over which the group has joint control or significant influence
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19
Sales to 

related 
party

Purchases 
from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed to 
related 

party
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

2020 29,838 4,980 7,331 9,273 
2019 28,497 4,462 3,564 7,791 

2020 1,076 - 118 - 
2019 1,162 - 153 - 

2020 924 - 16 - 
2019 917 - 137 - 

2020 10,210 8,538 5,386 84 
2019 3,878 3,387 8,850 2,996 

Other group undertakings

. Related party transactions (continued)

Entities with significant influence over the group

Entities over which YHN has joint control or significant influence

Entities over which the group has joint control or significant influence

Company
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20 . Pensions

This information is set out below:
2020 2019
£'m £'m

151.56 156.99
184.81 183.31

(33.25) (26.32)

The scheme assets are made up of the following 
allocations:

2020 2019
% %

54.8 65.0
9.0 8.8
4.1 4.1

15.3 11.7
2.3 2.7

14.5 7.7
100.0 100.0

Cash

The Company participates in the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund, which is a funded 
defined benefit scheme where contributions payable are held in a trust separately from 
the company.  The main results and assumptions of the most recent valuation of the Tyne 
and Wear Pension Fund are as follows.

Contributions to the scheme have been charged to the statement of comprehensive 
income on a cash basis.  A qualified actuary has determined contribution rates on the 
basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit method. The actuaries determined 
that in order to meet the funding target, the contribution rate would be set at 14.6% for 
2019-20 (2018-19: 14.6%).

Under the requirements of FRS 102, the Company is required to account for and disclose 
further information on its share of assets and liabilities of the Tyne and Wear Pension 
Fund at the end of the accounting period. The valuation at 31 March 2019 has been 
updated by an independent qualified actuary on an FRS 102 basis as at 31 March 2020.  
As required by FRS 102 the defined benefit liabilities have been measured using the 
projected unit credit method.

Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme liabilities

Other
Total

Funded Status

Equities
Property
Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds
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20 . Pensions (continued)

2020 2019
£'m £'m

Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
5.77 4.85
0.33 5.27
0.62 0.62

6.72 10.74

Recognised in other comprehensive income

(8.63) 7.04

5.70 (0.71)

(2.93) 6.33

2020 2019 2018
% % %

Main assumptions:
Discount rate 2.3 2.5 2.6
Inflation assumption (RPI) 2.5 3.2 3.1
Inflation assumption (CPI) 1.9 2.1 2.0
Rate of pension increase 1.9 2.1 2.0
Pension accounts revaluation rate 1.9 2.1 2.0
Rate of salary increases 3.4 3.6 3.5

2020 2019
Post retirement mortality

21.8 22.2
25.0 25.3
23.5 23.9
26.8 27.2    Future pensioners at 65 - female

    Retiring today at 65 – male
    Retiring today at 65 – female
    Future pensioners at 65 – male

Mortality assumptions

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income / 
(loss)

Past service costs
Interest on net defined benefit liability

Remeasurement Gains on assets taken to other comprehensive 
income 
Remeasurement Gains on liabilities taken to other 
comprehensive income

The amounts recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income and in the 
Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the Year are analysed as follows:

Total recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Current service cost
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20 . Pensions (continued)

2020 2019
£'m £'m

183.31 171.97
5.77 4.85
4.54 4.42
1.07 1.00

(5.70) 0.71
(4.51) (4.91)

0.33 5.27
184.81 183.31

2020 2019
£'m £'m

156.99 146.43
3.92 3.80

(8.63) 7.04
2.72 3.63
1.07 1.00

(4.51) (4.91)
151.56 156.99

Actual return on assets
2020 2019

£'m £'m
3.92 3.80

(8.63) 7.04
(4.71) 10.84Net return

Closing fair value of assets at 31 March

Opening defined benefit obligation at 1 April

Opening fair value of assets at 1 April

Interest income on assets
Gain on assets

Interest income on assets
Remeasurement gain on assets
Contributions by the employer
Contributions by the participants
Net benefits paid out

Changes to the fair value of assets during the accounting period

Closing defined benefit obligation at 31 March

Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by participants
Remeasurement gain on liabilities
Net benefits paid out
Past service cost 

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligations 
are analysed as follows:
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21 . Contingent Liabilities
Legal cases

22 .  Events Since Balance Sheet Date

YHN has one claim for unfair dismissal has been lodged with an Employee Tribunal 
against the Company during the financial year.  The company has disclaimed liability and is 
defending the action. The date of the case is still unknown and the outcome is uncertain. 
The directors are of the view that no material losses will arise in respect of legal claims at 
the date of these financial statements.

As Asfaleia ceased to trade on April 1st 2020 and all assets have been transferred to the 
YHN Company during 2020-21, the Asfaliea accounts for year 2019-20 were prepared on a 
break up basis whereby all assets and liabilities are considered to be crystallising within the 
next financial year.  The outstanding balance of the intragroup YHN-Asfaliea loan, after 
remaining assets had been transferred, of £118,544 was forgiven by YHN during 2020-21.
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Corporate Information 

Board Members, Company Secretary and Advisors 

Position Name Appointed 
Directors Joyce McCarty 22 September 2015 

Paul Scope 22 September 2015 

Malcolm Page 19 September 2017 

Company Secretary Jill Davison 25 July 2017 

Retired Directors in the year 

Position    Name Retired 
Chair of the Group Audit 
and Risk Committee 

Richard Clark 31 March 2020 

Registered Office Address YHN House, Benton Park Road, Newcastle upon 
Tyne, Tyne and Wear, NE7 7LX 

Company registration The Company is incorporated as a private Company 
limited by shares under the Companies Act 
(Company number 09772167) 

Internal Auditors Newcastle City Council 
Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne, 
NE1 8BR 

Corporate Information 
External Auditors Ernst and Young LLP 

Citygate, St James’ Boulevard, Newcastle upon 
Tyne, NE1 4JD 

Solicitor Mr John Softly, Chief Legal Officer 
Chief Executive’s Office, Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, 
Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8BR  

Trading names “Abri Trading”, “Palatine Beds”, “1907”, “Newcastle 
Furniture Service (NFS)”.  
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Strategic Report 
The members of the Board of Abri Trading Limited (trading as ‘Newcastle Furniture 
Service’, ‘Palatine Beds’ and ‘1907 Beds’) present their strategic report for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. 

The Company has chosen in accordance with Section 414C(ii) of the Companies 
Act 2006 to set out in this report the following which the Directors believe to be of 
strategic importance: 

• Review of the business
• Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal business 
The principal activity of Abri Trading Limited is the rental and sale of home 
furnishings to social landlords and others, manufacture of beds and installation of 
property insulation. The purpose and objectives are guided by those of the Parent 
Company, Your Homes Newcastle Limited. 

Review of the Year  
Abri Trading Limited was incorporated on 10 September 2015, and commenced 
trading on 1 October 2015 following a transfer of business and assets from 
Newcastle City Council and Your Homes Newcastle Limited. 

During the 2019-20 trading year Abri Trading Limited faced a number of challenging 
situations, with historical cyclical replacements being addressed, a number of NFS 
clients continuing to take a cautious approach as a result of Welfare Reform and a 
major private sector client entering into administration. Despite these challenges 
and impact upon turnover the service has continued to maintain operational profit 
levels by reducing costs. In addition, Palatine Beds has had a positive year, 
operating ahead of budget as a result of delivering a large scale contract. 
Furthermore, our Q-Bot service, which installs insulation using robots beneath the 
floor, has stabilised following contract negotiations and operational maximisation. 
There are a number of positive proactive plans in place to capitalise on commercial 
activity in the housing sector and wider marketplace. The results for the year after 
taxation amounted to £324,000 (2018-19: £218,000); the increase from last year is 
mainly due to the dissolution of Asfaleia resulting in no charitable gift aid payment to 
the society this year (2018-19: £200,000). 
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Strategic Report (continued) 
In May 2019, the Board agreed a strategy for NFS, which included the following 
aims and objectives: 

• Drive for surplus across all commercial activity;
• Marketing and business promotion for Abri new business to generate

and convert leads;
• Distance contracts to be reviewed/ risk assessed on case by case

basis;
• Stabilisation of the business through focusing on improving systems,

processes and controls;
• Review and improve the transport/ delivery operating model and

performance

Incremental improvements across the service have been made during 2019/20, 
including a review of the “My Furniture Service” and revision of depreciation policies 
to write off items with a short useful life and zero second-hand value.  Further work 
is planned for 2020/2021 to mitigate the impact of a changing external environment. 

Principal  Risks and Uncertainties 
The risks facing the Company are considered at each quarterly Group Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting, with a formal update of the Risk Register taking place annually 
at the Board.   

The Board considers its risks to be commercial and financial.  The commercial risks 
relate to loss of business through increased competition, or customers’ reduced 
ability to afford our products. 

The financial risks are set out below. 

Financial Risk Management Policy  
Abri Trading Limited holds no complex financial instruments.  Cash balances 
generated from trade are initially held at Newcastle City Council before settlement. 
Other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade creditors and related party 
balances, arise directly from the Company's operating activities. The main risks 
associated with Abri Trading Limited’s financial assets and liabilities are set out 
below. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Financial assets, liabilities, interest income and cash flows can be affected by 
movements in interest rates.  The Board Members do not consider there to be any 
significant exposure.  The Company’s loans have fixed interest rates. 

5
Page 95



Strategic Report (continued) 
Credit Risk 
Individual exposure and overdue debts are monitored with customers subject to 
credit limits to ensure that Abri Trading Limited's exposure to bad debts is not 
significant. 

Liquidity Risk 
Abri Trading Limited’s short term liquidity risks are reduced as its daily cash 
transactions are managed as part of the larger Newcastle City Council bank 
balances.  Long term liquidity risks are managed through robust business modelling. 

Foreign Currency Risk 
Abri Trading Limited’s foreign currency transactions are of low value.  All of its 
activities take place within the United Kingdom and consequently, the Company is 
not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk. 

Impact of Coronavirus 
Since the Covid-19 lockdown was announced in March 2020, Abri Trading Limited 
and the YHN Group has supported customers, colleagues and partners to deliver 
effective and efficient services across all directorates. The health and wellbeing of 
our employees and customers has been the priority focus for YHN as we look to 
support NCC in combined efforts to tackle the pandemic. 

As a result, services provided by YHN, including Abri Trading Limited, have been 
transformed; our existing Business Continuity plan has been adapted and new 
policies have been created to suit the unique challenges posed by Covid-19.  

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 26 January 2021 and signed on 
its behalf on DATE by: 

Joyce McCarty Jill Davison 
Director Company Secretary 
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Directors’ Report 

The members of the Board of Abri Trading Limited present their Directors’ Report for 
the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Interests of Board Members 
Abri Trading Limited is a private company limited by shares which is a subsidiary of 
Your Homes Newcastle, which is wholly controlled by the local authority, Newcastle 
City Council.  Abri Trading Limited has three independently appointed Board 
members.  

Share structure 
At incorporation a single ordinary share was issued to Your Homes Newcastle 
Limited (Your Homes Newcastle, the Parent).  No share issues or changes of 
ownership have occurred since.  The Directors recommend a £nil dividend for the 
year (2018-19: £nil). 

Complex financial instruments 
Abri Trading Limited holds no complex financial instruments. 

Indemnities granted to Directors 
No indemnities have been granted to Directors during the financial year. 

Employee Communication and Involvement  
Abri Trading Limited does not employ any staff.  Staff resources are provided by 
Your Homes Newcastle through service agreements.  The Your Homes Newcastle 
Group is committed to the involvement of its entire staff in the development and 
improvement of all areas of work and understands the importance of effective 
communication to achieve change. 

The organisation employs a number of different approaches to encourage staff 
involvement and communication. 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities  
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report 
and financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each 
financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).  
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Directors’ Report (Continued) 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (Continued) 
Under Company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless 
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the Directors are required to: 

• Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are 
sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

The Board of Directors takes its responsibilities in relation to bribery seriously and 
continues to support initiatives to emphasise the organisation’s anti-corruption 
culture. 

Going Concern 
Having made enquiries, the Board consider that the Company’s current and future 
prospects and its availability of financing are adequate to enable it to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future and that they are also satisfied that the Company 
can continue to pay its liabilities as they fall due for a period of at least 12 months 
from the signing of the audit opinion of these financial statements. The impact of 
Covid-19 is expected to be absorbed without taking any mitigating actions, such as 
restricting investment programmes or considering further borrowing. 

The Board considers that a robust going concern assessment process was 
undertaken and the results discussed and challenged formally at the Group Audit 
and Risk Committee on 9 July 2020.  At that meeting the Group Audit and Risk 
Committee recommended the Board’s approval of these annual accounts. 
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Directors’ Report (Continued) 

Going Concern (continued) 
The process for determining whether or not the Company is a going concern 
involved a number of considerations including an assessment of the financial   
budgets and forecasts to March 2022, the continued and possible future effects of 
Welfare Reform, and the estimated impact of Covid-19. This period is considered to 
be the ‘foreseeable future’ as required for this ongoing assessment only and is in 
accordance with Company law and accounting rules.  The assessment also 
considered the solvency and liquidity risks involved in delivering the financial 
forecasts for the foreseeable future.   

Future Developments 
The Directors will continue to look for opportunities to grow the business and mitigate 
the budget pressures felt by our customers.  

Following the recruitment of an Assistant Director of Commercial Strategy and 
Growth in December 2019, a full review of commercial activity against the strategy 
has been ongoing. As part of this review, a Commercial Plan will be developed 
during 2020. The review will consider several areas, including: 

• Gap analysis of service delivery and structure;
• Stakeholder and relationship management;
• Ensuring commercial activity contributes to the delivery of Destination 2022

and provides contribution to wider YHN services;
• Additional measures to provide governance and risk management assurance

Events Since Balance Sheet Date 

For the 2020-2021 financial year, following identification of efficiencies in 2019-2020, 
there will be a transfer of business and assets into Abri Trading Limited from Asfaleia 
Limited, the charitable subsidiary of the Your Homes Newcastle Group. This was 
carefully considered over a period of months by the Group with support from legal 
representatives to ensure that the transfer process is legally compliant. 
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Directors’ Report (Continued) 

Disclosure of information to auditors  
All the Board members, appointed at the date upon which this report and accounts 
were approved, were not aware of any relevant audit information which was required 
by the auditors in connection with the preparation of the report and accounts, of 
which the auditor is unaware.  Having made enquiries of fellow Board members and 
Your Homes Newcastle’s auditors, each Board member has taken all the steps that 
he/she is obliged to take as a member of the Board in order to make himself/herself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of 
that information. 

Auditors 
EY LLP are the external auditors of the Your Homes Newcastle Group for the period 
2019-20. EY LLP have indicated that they are willing to continue in this role. 

The report of the members of the Board was considered and approved by the Board 
on 26 January 2021 and signed on its behalf on DATE by: 

Joyce McCarty Jill Davison  
Director Company Secretary 

10
Page 100



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABRI TRADING LIMITED 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Abri Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the 
Statement of Financial Position and the related notes1 to 19, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

• the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
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required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

• the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ 
report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors 

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

[Signature] 
Richard Lingwood (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Newcastle upon Tyne 

January 2021 
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 Abri Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20

Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 12 month period ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Income 2 7,264 6,663 
Operating costs 3 (6,709) (6,286)
Operating Profit 4 555 377 

(Loss)/Gain on disposal of fixed assets (33) 14 
Interest payable and other charges 6 (167) (167)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 355 224 

Taxation 8 (31) (6)

Profit for the financial period 324 218 
Total comprehensive income for the period 324 218 

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the 12 month period ended 31 March 2020

Profit and 
loss reserve Total

£000 £000
1,638 1,638

218 218
1,856 1,856

324 324
2,180 2,180

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019

Balance as at 31 March 2018
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 Abri Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20

Financial Statements
(continued)

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2020 Registered company: 9772167

2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 1,118 1,214 

1,118 1,214 
Current assets
Stocks 10 269 312 
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 11 3,372 2,993 
Cash at bank and in hand 2,952 3,032 

6,593 6,337 

Less Creditors: amounts falling due in less than 
one year 12 (1,824) (1,988)
Net current assets 4,769 4,349 
Total assets less current liabilities 5,887 5,563 
Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one 
year 13 (3,707) (3,707)

Total net assets 2,180 1,856 

Reserves and capital
Share capital 15 - - 
Profit and loss reserve 16 2,180 1,856 

2,180 1,856 

Signed on behalf of the Board

Joyce McCarty
Director

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 
26 January  2021.          
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 Abri Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements 2019-20

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Statement of Compliance 

1.2 Basis of preparation 

Abri Trading Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated and registered in Newcastle upon Tyne, 
England under the Companies Act 2006 (Registered Number 9772167). The Registered Office is 
YHN House, Benton Park Road, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE7 7LX.  The principal place of business 
is YHN House, Benton Park Road, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE7 7LX.  

Abri Trading Limited is a company limited by shares.  The sole shareholder is Your Homes 
Newcastle Ltd, a company controlled by Newcastle City Council. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with 
FRS102 as it applies to the financial statements of the company for the period ended 31 March 
2020.  

• the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows
• the requirements of Section 11 Basic Financial Instruments paragraphs 11.39 to 11.48A
• the requirements of Section 33 Related Party Disclosure paragraph 33.7

The financial statements have been prepared for the 12 months to 31 March 2020 in alignment with 
the accounting period of the parent company Your Homes Newcastle Ltd.

• the requirements of Section 4 Statement of Financial Position paragraph 4.12(a)(iv)

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in 
respect of the following disclosures:

The group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is Your Home Newcastle Limited.
Consolidated financial statements of Your Homes Newcastle Limited are available on request from
Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8PR.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 January 2021.  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.  
The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the Company 
and rounded to the nearest £’000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Tthe Group has received confirmation from Newcastle City Council that the Council would assist 
Your Homes Newcastle (“YHN”) in meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due, to the extent that 
money is not otherwise available to YHN to meet such liabilities. Accordingly, the directors of the 
Group believe that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern, on the 
grounds that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

1.3 Going concern
The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which assumes that 
the Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and meet its liabilities 
as they fall due.

Coronavirus
Since the Covid-19 lockdown was announced in March 2020, Abri, as part of the YHN Group has 
supported customers, colleagues and partners to deliver effective and efficient services across all 
areas. The health and wellbeing of our employees and customers has been the priority focus, as 
Abri look to support YNH and Newcastle City Council in combined efforts to tackle the pandemic.

As a result, services provided by Abri have been transformed; our existing Business Continuity plan 
has been adapted and new policies have been created to suit the unique challenges posed by 
Covid-19. As customers adapt to the restrictions imposed as a result of Covid-19, our teams have 
been extremely flexible and have developed a proactive and reactive approach to support. Welfare 
calls to our customers have ensured that they are safe and well.  Up to 14 May, 17,637 proactive 
welfare calls have been made to customers.  

The customer experience has remained our focus with regular proactive support initiatives, and 
communications. Feedback from customers has confirmed positivity around welfare calls and 
services being provided. We will be looking to gain insight into customers views through a 
customer survey at an appropriate time, as their views will help us shape the future delivery of our 
services.

The initial estimated impact of Covid-19 on the Group Finances is £1.8m worse than budgeted 
surplus for 2020/21, meaning the result for the year would be a deficit of around £1.3m, before 
adjustments for pensions and transformation. Predictions over the next five years show Group 
financial performance recovers to achieve a surplus by March 2022 and achieves target levels by 
March 2024.

Neither cash nor reserves balances are predicted to be fully exhausted in the current 5-year 
forecast, therefore the Board expect the impact of Covid-19 to be absorbed without taking any 
mitigating actions such as restricting investment programmes or considering further borrowing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Recoverability of stock and debtors

Fixed asset accounting

Abri Trading’s fixed assets are comprised of items of furniture rented to landlords under the NFS 
brand.  NFS operations are split between Your Homes Newcastle and Abri Trading.  Resources 
and fixed assets employed to deliver furniture services to Newcastle City Council are recorded in 
the Parent’s accounts.  Commercial contracts with other landlords are delivered by Abri Trading.

However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the balance 
sheet date, and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the period. 

The following judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty have had the most significant 
effect on the financial statements:

Overview of NFS (Newcastle Furniture Service) Brand

1. disposed and recorded as a disposal with no proceeds, or
2. returned to the Parent’s stock where it is held at the net book value of the asset at the time of

its return.   A fixed asset disposal is recorded.

Asset purchases and transfers
All furniture is initially purchased by the parent undertaking, where it is held at cost price as 
inventory.  Subsequently, when an item of furniture is rented out to an Abri Trading customer, a 
purchase from the parent is recorded.  The furniture is then held with Abri Trading as a fixed asset 
and held at historic cost less depreciation.  The sale is not expensed in the Parent’s income 
statement.

If a customer returns an item of furniture, an assessment is made of the condition of the asset and 
it is either

Where there are indicators of slow moving or obsolete stock or slow recovery of debtors, the 
Company assesses whether a provision is required based on the assessment of the individual 
items and historic knowledge.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.4 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fixed asset accounting (continued)

Stocks

1.5 Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

· Fixed fee per period; or
· Reference to labour hours incurred to date; or
· Fee per unit managed.

Grants

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Company obtains the right to consideration in 
exchange for its performance.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, 
excluding discounts, rebates and VAT.  The following criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognised:

Grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be received and that all 
related conditions will be met, usually on submission of a valid claim for payment.  Grants are of a 
revenue nature and as such are credited to income so as to match them with the expenditure to 
which they relate.

Revenue from the provision of management services is recognised, according to the individual 
contract, by:

Stocks in Abri Trading consist solely of the raw materials and finished goods relating to Palatine 
Beds.  There are no inventory holdings in relation to NFS operations, as these are owned by the 
Parent undertaking.

Presentation
The YHN Group uses a global fixed asset register across NFS to control the assets of Abri Trading 
and the Parent undertaking.  To clarify the transactions to the reader and to aid the reconciliation of 
the Financial Statements to the asset register, additional lines have been added to the fixed asset 
register to show the additions and disposals within the Group.

Where contract income cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of 
the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)
1.5 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

· Tenant furniture packs - over 1.5 to 4 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Stocks

· Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale - purchase cost on a first-in,
first-out basis

· Work in progress and finished goods – cost of direct materials and labour plus
attributable overheads based on a normal level of activity

All stocks related to operations at Palatine Beds.

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether an asset may be impaired.  If any such 
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.  If it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.  The recoverable amount of an 
asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  If 
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount through an impairment in profit and loss unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount where the impairment loss of a revalued asset is a revaluation 
decrease. 
An impairment loss recognised for all assets is reversed in a subsequent period if and only if the 
reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  Such cost includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of 
operating as intended.  
Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, at rates calculated to write off the 
asset on a systematic basis over its expected useful life as follows:

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs include all costs incurred in 
bringing each product to its present location and condition, as follows:

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be 
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short 
term deposits with an original maturity date of three months or less.  For the purpose of the 
consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents 
as defined above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.5 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Short-term debtors and creditors

Deferred Tax

· Where there are differences between amounts that can be deducted for tax for
assets and liabilities compared with the amounts that are recognised for those
assets and liabilities in a business combination a deferred tax asset shall be
recognised; and

· Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that the directors consider that it probable that they will be recovered against the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are 
recorded at transaction price.  Any losses arising from the impairment are recognised in the income 
statement in other operating expenses.

The Group establishes provisions based on reasonable estimates, for possible  consequences of 
audits by the UK tax authorities.  The amount of such provision is based on  various factors, such 
as differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and  the tax authority. 

Taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences which are differences between 
taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and 
expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the 
financial statements except that:

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the periods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

2 . Analysis of Turnover
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Income from Furniture Rentals 3,823 3,935 
Sales of goods - Furniture Service 1,134 993 
Sale of goods - Palatine Beds 1,981 1,672 
Other income 326 63 

7,264 6,663 

3 . Analysis of Operating Costs
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Recharges from Parent undertaking - direct staff costs 1,237 1,249 
Recharges from Parent undertaking - direct non-staff costs 733 567 
Recharges from Parent undertaking - support costs 1,443 1,281 
Premises costs 102 132 
Transport costs 135 53 
Supplies & services 132 76 
Stock and materials expensed 2,216 1,767 
Bad debt expense 9 96 
Depreciation 515 530 
Fixed asset write offs 183 335 
Gift aid 4 200 

6,709 6,286 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

4 . Operating Profit
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
515 530 
183 335 

2,216 1,767 

For audit services 5 5 
For non audit services - 3 

5 . Employee Information

There are no employees within Abri Trading Limited.

6 . Interest Payable
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
167 167 

7 . Key Management Personnel

All directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company are considered to be key 
management personnel.  

The Key Management Personnel of Abri Trading are employees or directors of the 
Parent, and do not receive remuneration from Abri Trading. The recharge of related 
costs paid by Abri Trading during the year totalled £55k (2019: £48k).

Auditors' fees

Interest on group loans

Depreciation of tangible assets

Stock and materials expensed
Fixed asset write-offs
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

8 . Tax
(a) Tax on surplus on ordinary activities
The tax charge is made up as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Current tax:
UK Corporation tax on profits for the period 80 - 
Adjustment in respect of previous periods - - 
Total current tax 80 - 

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences (49) 6 
Effect of changes in tax rates - - 
Total deferred tax (49) 6 

Total tax per income statement 31 6 

(b) Tax charge reconciled to total comprehensive income
The tax charge is made up as follows: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 355 224 

Effects of group relief (1) (36)
Tax rate changes (36) (1)
Tax charge for the period 31 6 

(c) Unprovided deferred tax (asset)/liability 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Fixed asset timing differences - -
At 31 March 2019 - - 

(d) Factors affecting future tax charges

The standard rate of UK corporation tax for the period was 19.00% (2019 19.00%). A 
reduction in the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted prior to the 
balance sheet date and have been applied to the Company's deferred tax balance at the 
balance sheet date

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of 
corporation tax of 19% 68 43 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

8 . Tax (continued)

(e) Deferred tax
The movement in the deferred taxation asset during the year
was: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
At 1 April (307) (313)
Statement of Comprehensive Income (49) 6 
At 31 March (356) (307)
The Company's asset for deferred taxation consists of the tax 
effect of timing differences in respect of: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Fixed asset timing differences (356) (307)
At 31 March (356) (307)

9 . Tangible assets
Equipment

£'000
Cost:
At 1 April 2019 2,339 
Additions 6 
Net transfer from parent undertaking 582 
Disposals (566)
At 31 March 2020 2,361 

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 April 2019 (1,125)
Provided during the year (515)
Net transfer to parent undertaking 92 
Disposals 305 
At 31 March 2020 (1,243)

Net book value:
At 31 March 2020 1,118 

As at 1 April 2019 1,214 

See note 1.3 for further information on fixed asset transactions and 
presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

10 . Stocks

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Raw materials and consumables 136 156 
Finished goods 133 156 

269 312 

Stock values are shown net of a stock provision value of £23,000 (2019: £11,000).

11 . Debtors
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Amounts owed from YHN Group companies 244 352 
Amounts owed from NCC 1,509 873 
Trade debtors 949 1,040 
Other debtors and prepayments 314 421 
Tax asset 356 307 

3,372 2,993 

Stocks recognised as an expense in the period were £2,216,000 (2019: £1,767,000 - 
restated) included in Operating Costs (Note 3).

Abri Trading's stocks comprise the raw materials and finished goods relating to sales of 
Palatine Beds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

12 . Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

1,594 1,666 
- 96 

138 226 
1,732 1,988 

12 - 
80 - 

1,824 1,988 

13 . Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one year
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

3,707 3,707 
3,707 3,707 

14 . Financial Instruments
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

3,707 3,707 

Trade Payables 63 51 
Accruals 1,669 1,937 

Trade Receivables 1,106 1,290 
Other debtors 2,059 1,637 
Cash 2,952 3,032 

Financial assets measured at cost:

Amounts owed to YHN Group companies

Interest is payable on amounts owed to parent undertakings at rates of 4.5% per annum.

Loans payable to parent undertaking

Creditors and other accruals

Tax liability

Amounts due to NCC

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Loans from parent undertaking

Financial liabilities measured at cost:

Income in advance

Trade Payables and Accruals
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

15 . Share Capital
2020 2019

£1 £1
£1 £1

16 . Reserves
Profit and loss reserve

One share of £1 was issued to the parent Your Homes Newcastle at the time of incorporation.  
No further issues or changes of ownership have occurred to 31 March 2019.

Unpaid share capital

This reserve represents the cumulative comprehensive income recognised in the Company, 
less any dividends paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

17 . Related party transactions

Entities with significant influence over the group

Newcastle City Council (NCC)
The Directors consider that NCC is the ultimate controlling party of the YHN Group.

Other group companies

Transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Sales to 
related 

party

Purchases 
from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed to 
related 

party
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Entities with significant influence over 
the group
     2020 456 226 1,509 - 
     2019 724 302 873 96 

Entities over which the Company has 
joint control or significant influence
     2020 151 - 101 - 
     2019 245 - 9 - 

During the year the Abri entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with 
other related parties.

With the exception of petty cash transactions, all cash book payments and receipts are 
made via NCC's banking intermediaries with the net balance owing to or from the City 
Council being disclosed as a current asset or liability as appropriate.

 Abri Trading Ltd is part of the the YHN Group which  consists of the lead company Your 
Homes Newcastle, Abri Trading Ltd and Asfaleia.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 March 2020

17 . Related party transactions - continued

Sales to 
related 

party

Purchases 
from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed from 

related 
party

Amounts 
owed to 
related 

party
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Parent undertakings
     2020 737 186 244 5,301 
     2019 393 234 352 5,373 
Other group undertakings
     2020 - - - - 
     2019 - - - - 

18

19 . Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Your Homes Newcastle Limited, a 
Company incorporated in England. Your Homes Newcastle Limited is the smallest group 
in which Abri Trading Limited is consolidated within. Consolidated financial statements of 
Your Homes Newcastle Limited are available on request from the Company Secretary, 
YHN House, Benton Park Road, Newcastle NE7 7LX.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Newcastle City 
Council. Newcastle City Council is the largest group in which Abri Trading Limited is 
consolidated within. Consolidated financial statements are available on request from 
available on request from Civic Centre, Barras Bridge, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8PR.

. Events Since Balance Sheet Date
As Asfaleia ceased to trade on April 1st 2020 and all assets transferred YHN Company 
part of the YHN group during 2020-21. Asfaleia accounts for year 2019-20 were prepared 
on a break up basis whereby all assets and liabilities are considered to be crystallising 
within the next financial year.  Services previously offered by Asfaleia to external parties 
will be provided by Abri from 2020-21 onwards.
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Ernst & Young LLP  
Citygate  
St James’ Boulevard  
Newcastle upon Tyne  
NE1 4JD  

[date]  
  

  
Dear Sirs  
 
Your Homes Newcastle Limited (YHN)  
 
The Directors of the company have performed an assessment of the appropriateness of the 
going concern basis of preparation of the statutory financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2020.  The Directors have concluded that the company can continue to pay its 
liabilities as they fall due, or otherwise agreed with creditors, for a period of at least 12 
months from the date of approval of the financial statements.  In making that assessment 
the Directors confirm that they have considered the following factors:-  

• The basis on which the conclusion has been drawn has been discussed and agreed 
with all Directors;  
• Forecasts and budgets prepared for the year ending March 2021 and for the 
following four years, taking into account the expected impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic.  
• We have also applied various sensitivities and risks associated within the 
assumptions thereon (including “stress testing” scenarios);  
• The availability of continuing finance from Newcastle City Council (NCC), including 
the renewal of loan finance;   
• The 10-year Management Agreement with NCC which came into force from 1st April 
2016;   
• The support from NCC to assist YHN in meeting its pension liabilities as and when 
they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise available to meet these liabilities.  

  
Based on the above we can confirm that we believe that adequate finance 
facilities (bank facilities) will continue to be made available to the company for a period until 
at least 12 months after date of approval of the financial statements and that they will be 
satisfactorily renewed at their respective review dates.  
 
Yours faithfully, on behalf of the Board of Directors  
  
Noel Anthony Gates    Jill Davison  
  
  
  
Chair      Company Secretary  
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Ernst & Young LLP  
Citygate  
St James’ Boulevard  
Newcastle upon Tyne  
NE1 4JD  

[date]  
  

  
Dear Sirs  
 
Abri Trading Limited (Abri)  
 
The Directors of the company have performed an assessment of the appropriateness of the 
going concern basis of preparation of the statutory financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2020.  The Directors have concluded that the company can continue to pay its 
liabilities as they fall due, or otherwise agreed with creditors, for a period of at least 12 
months from the date of approval of the financial statements.  In making that assessment 
the Directors confirm that they have considered the following factors:-  

• The basis on which the conclusion has been drawn has been discussed and agreed 
with all Directors;  
• Forecasts and budgets prepared for the group for the year ending March 2021 and 
for the following four years, taking into account the expected impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic.  
• We have also applied various sensitivities and risks associated within the 
assumptions thereon (including “stress testing” scenarios) for the Your Home Newcastle 
Group;  
• The availability of continuing finance from Your Homes Newcastle Limited (YHN)  
including the renewal of loan finance;   
• The 10-year Management Agreement with NCC which came into force from 1st April 
2016;   
• The support from NCC to assist Abri in meeting its pension liabilities as and when 
they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise available to meet these liabilities.  

  
Based on the above we can confirm that we believe that adequate finance 
facilities (bank facilities) will continue to be made available to the company for a period until 
at least 12 months after date of approval of the financial statements and that they will be 
satisfactorily renewed at their respective review dates.  
 
Yours faithfully, on behalf of the Board of Directors  
  
Joyce McCarty    Jill Davison  
  
  
  
Director     Company Secretary  
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Your Homes Newcastle 
YHN House 
Benton Park Rd 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE7 7LX 
 
19 January 2021 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
We refer to your request to provide you with confirmation of support from Newcastle City 
Council (“NCC”) to assist Your Homes Newcastle (“YHN”) in meeting its pension liabilities 
as and when they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise available to you to meet 
such liabilities. For the purpose of clarity, this support includes the following: 
 
• As part of the triennial actuarial valuation process, NCC will agree with the Tyne & Wear 

Pension Fund (“TWPF”) that YHN’s pension assets / liabilities should be assessed on 
the same basis as is used for NCC. 

 
• In the event YHN is assessed as having a pension deficit as part of the triennial actuarial 

valuation process, NCC would agree with TWPF that any deficit payments could be 
spread over a similar period to NCC itself. 

 
• In the event YHN are required to make annual payments to TWPF (in relation to the 

above) then NCC would agree this could be funded via the HRA management fee. 
 
• In the event YHN was ever deemed not to be a going concern then NCC would subsume 

YHN’s pension deficit (if one exists) and recover the annual costs arising from doing so 
directly from the HRA. 

 
• We confirm we will continue to provide the support outlined above for a period of at least 

12 months from the date of approval of YHN’s accounts. Should any matter set out within 
this letter be unclear then please do not hesitate to contact the signatory for further 
clarification. 

 
We undertake to inform you immediately in the unlikely event that circumstances change, 
and we are no longer able to provide such support to you. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Mark Nicholson 
Assistant Director Financial Services 

The person dealing with this matter is: 
Mark Nicholson 
Newcastle City Council 
Civic Centre 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE1 8QH 
 
Phone: 0191 211 5115 
Fax:      0191 211 4840 
Email: mark.nicholson@newcastle.gov.uk 
www.newcastle.gov.uk 
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Letter of representations: Audit of Group and parent 
company financial statements       

  

  1 
 

 [To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead] 

[Date]  

 

Ernst & Young LLP 
Citygate 
St. James’ Boulevard 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE14JD 

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the 
consolidated and parent company financial statements of Your Homes Newcastle 
Limited (“the Group and Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. We 
recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information 
contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as 
to whether the consolidated and parent company financial statements give a true and 
fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in all material respects,’) the Group and Company 
financial position of Your Homes Newcastle Limited as of 31 March 2020 and of its 
financial performance (or operations) and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with, for the Group, UK GAAP, FRS 102, and for the Company, UK 
GAAP and FRS 102. 

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our consolidated and parent 
company financial statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit 
was conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which 
involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to 
the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to 
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and 
other irregularities, should any exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit 
engagement letter dated 2 October 2017, for the preparation of the financial 
statements in accordance with, for the Group UK GAAP, FRS 102, and for the 
Company UK GAAP and FRS 102. 

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Group and Company, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the consolidated and parent company 
financial statements.  We believe the consolidated and parent company financial 
statements referred to above give a true and fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in all 
material respects’) the financial position, financial performance (or results of 
operations) and cash flows of the Group in accordance with, for the Group and 
Company, UK GAAP and FRS 102, and are free of material misstatements, 
including omissions.  We have approved the financial statements. 
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3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group and 
Company financial statements are appropriately described in the Group and 
Company financial statements. 

4. As members of management of the Group and Company, we believe that the 
Group and Company have a system of internal controls adequate to enable the 
preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with for the Group 
and Company, UK GAAP and FRS 102, that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the effect of the unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the 
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and 
pertaining to the latest period presented is immaterial to the consolidated and 
company financial statements taken as a whole. We have not corrected the 
difference identified and brought to our attention by the auditor due to the fact it 
is immaterial. 

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Group and 
Company’s business activities are conducted in accordance with laws and 
regulations and that we are responsible to identify and address any non-
compliance with applicable laws or regulations, including fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
consolidated and parent company financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws 
or regulations, including fraud, that may have affected the Group or Company 
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations 
by “whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters: 

• Involving financial improprieties 

• Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the 
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
and parent company financial statements 

• Related to laws or regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated and parent company financial 
statements, but compliance with which may be fundamental to the 
operations of the Group and Company’s business, its ability to continue 
in business, or to avoid material penalties 

• Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in 
internal control, or others 
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• In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, 
former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters; 

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
the audit; and 

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined 
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and [all 
material transactions, events and conditions] are reflected in the consolidated 
and parent company financial statements, including those related to the COVID-
19 pandemic. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of shareholders, 
directors and committees of directors (or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the period 
to the most recent meeting.   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification 
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Group and 
Company’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of 
which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, 
liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary 
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well 
as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end. These 
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the 
consolidated and parent company financial statements. 

5. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Group and Company has complied with, all 
aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the 
consolidated and parent company financial statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all 
outstanding debt. 
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D. Liabilities and Contingencies 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately 
reflected in the consolidated and parent company financial statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, 
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation 
and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in notes to the 
consolidated and parent company financial statements all guarantees that we 
have given to third parties. 

4. No other claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be 
received. 

E. Subsequent Events  

1. Other than as described in notes to the consolidated and parent company 
financial statements, there have been no events including events related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or 
disclosure in the consolidated and parent company financial statements or notes 
thereto.  

F. Group audits  

1. There are no significant restrictions on our ability to distribute the retained profits 
of the Group because of statutory, contractual, exchange control or other 
restrictions other than those indicated in the Group financial statements. 

2. Necessary adjustments have been made to eliminate all material intra-group 
unrealised profits on transactions amongst parent company, subsidiary 
undertakings and associated undertakings. 

G. Other information 

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the strategic report and the directors’ report. 

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent 
with the financial statements. 
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H. Going Concern 

1. Note 1 to the consolidated and parent company financial statements discloses all 
the matters of which we are aware that are relevant to the Group and Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, including significant conditions and 
events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those plans. 

I. Estimates  

1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and 
models, used to determine the accounting estimates have been consistently 
applied and are appropriate in the context of, for the Group and Company, UK 
GAAP and FRS 102. 

2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the accounting 
estimate appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out the specific 
courses of action on behalf of the entity. 

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the consolidated and parent company 
financial statements with respect to the accounting estimates are complete 
including the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and made in accordance with, for 
the Group and Company, UK GAAP and FRS 102. 

4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures in the consolidated and parent company financial statements due to 
subsequent events, including due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

J. Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme 
liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant 
retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 
properly accounted for. 

 

 

Yours faithfully,  

 
_______________________ 
(YHN Signatory)  
 
_______________________ 
(YHN Signatory) 
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Appendix A 

 

Opening balance adjustment on fixed assets disposal 

Fixed assets disposal recorded twice in prior year – during our testing, we identified an opening balance adjustment on fixed assets register as 
a result of disposals adjustment which was double recorded. This adjustment affects fixed assets of YHN and Abri of £14k and £59k, 
respectively. These values are individually and in aggregate immaterial to the Group financial statements. 

 Dr Cr 
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income – Profit and loss reserve 72,000  

Group Balance Sheet – Tangible assets  72,000 

 

Impairment of loan to Asfaleia Ltd. 

Impairment of loan to Asfaleia Ltd. of £119k - Based on our discussion with management and subject to receiving corroborating evidence, we 
identified a remaining uncollectible loan of £119k from YHN to Asfaleia of £119k. This amount was written off subsequent to year end and is 
therefore impaired as at March 31, 2020.  The amount is however immaterial to the Group financial statements. 

 Dr Cr 
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income – Impairment of 
intercompany loan to Asfaleia 

119,000  

Company Balance Sheet – Other Investments – non current assets  119,000 
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Pension liability 

The assurances received from the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund auditor by YHN auditor have highlighted a difference between the total fund 
asset values at 31 March 2020, that were used by the actuary, and the value that they tested as part of their year end audit. The estimated impact 
of this difference on YHN’s financial statements is that the pension liability is understated by £471k. As this is an estimated position and is also 
immaterial, we are comfortable that this does not cause a material misstatement in the financial statements and therefore have chosen not to 
amend. 

 Dr Cr 
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income – Actuarial (loss)/gain on 
defined benefit pension 

471,000  

Group Balance Sheet – Pension Assets  471,000 
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[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead] 

[Date]  

 

Ernst & Young 
Citygate 
St. James’ Boulevard 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE1 4JD 

 
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of Abri Trading Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 March 
2020.  We recognize that obtaining representations from us concerning the 
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of (or 
‘present fairly, in all material respects,’) the financial position of Abri Trading Limited 
as of 31 March 2020 and of its financial performance (or operations) and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with UK GAAP, FRS 102. 

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing, which involves an examination of the accounting 
system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in 
the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to 
disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit 
engagement letter dated 2 October 2017, for the preparation of the financial 
statements in accordance with UK GAAP, FRS 102. 

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Company, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe the 
financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of (or ‘present 
fairly, in all material respects’)  the financial position, financial performance (or 
results of operations) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with UK 
GAAP, FRS 102, and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  
We have approved the financial statements. 

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements. 

4. As members of management of the Company, we believe that the Company has 
a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate 
financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP, FRS 102 that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We have disclosed to you 
any significant changes in our processes, controls, policies and procedures that 
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we have made to address the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our system 
of internal controls. 

5. We believe that the effect of the unadjusted audit difference, summarised in the 
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and 
pertaining to the latest period presented is immaterial to the company financial 
statements taken as a whole. We have not corrected the difference identified 
and brought to our attention by the auditor due to the fact it is immaterial. 

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud  

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Company’s 
business activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and 
that we are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with 
applicable laws or regulations, including fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws 
or regulations including fraud that may have affected the Company (regardless 
of the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations by 
“whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters: 

• Involving financial improprieties 

• Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the 
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Company’s 
financial statements 

• Related to laws or regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with 
which may be fundamental to the operations of the Company’s 
business, its ability to continue in business, or to avoid material 
penalties 

• Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in 
internal control, or others     

• In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, 
former employees, analysts, regulators or others 
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C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters 

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
the audit and 

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined 
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and [all 
material transactions, events and conditions] are reflected in the financial 
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of shareholders, 
directors and committees of directors (or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the period 
to the most recent meeting.   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification 
of related parties.  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Company’s 
related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we 
are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and 
services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and 
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related 
balances due to or from such parties at the [period] end.  These transactions 
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements. 

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Company has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or 
other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

6. From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of 
this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized access to our information 
technology systems that either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is 
reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation, including of 
reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law 
enforcement agencies and security consultants), to the extent that such 
unauthorized access to our information technology systems is reasonably likely 
to have a material impact to the financial statements, in each case or in the 
aggregate. 
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D. Liabilities and Contingencies 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, 
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to 
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in notes to 
the financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.  

4. No other claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be 
received.  

E. Subsequent Events  

1. Other than as described in notes to the financial statements, there have been no 
events, including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, subsequent to 
period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements 
or notes thereto. 

F. Other information 

1.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the Strategic Report and Director’s Report. 

2.  We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent 
with the financial statements. 

G. Income and Indirect Taxes 

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the tax accounting methods adopted by 
the Company, which have been consistently applied in the current period, and 
for the current year income tax provision calculation. 

2. We also acknowledge our responsibility for the plans with respect to future 
taxable income, which represent our estimates as to the outcome of those plans, 
based on available evidence, and for the significant assumptions used in our 
analysis.  We would implement such strategies as necessary to prevent a tax 
operating loss or credit carryforward from expiring.  

3. We have disclosed to you all tax opinions, correspondence with tax authorities, 
or other appropriate information that served as support for the accounting for 
potentially material matters.   
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H. Estimates 

1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and 
models, used to determine the accounting estimate(s) have been consistently 
applied and are appropriate in the context of UK GAAP, FRS 102. 

2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the accounting 
estimate appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of 
action on behalf of the entity. 

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to 
the accounting estimates are complete, including the effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic and made in accordance with UK GAAP, FRS 102. 

4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures in the financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Yours faithfully,  

 
________________________ 
(Abri Signatory)  
 
_______________________ 
(Abri Signatory) 
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Opening balance adjustment on fixed assets disposal 

Fixed assets disposal recorded twice in prior year – during our testing, we identified 
an opening balance adjustment on fixed assets register as a result of disposals 
adjustment which was double recorded. The value is immaterial to the financial 
statements. 

 Dr Cr 
Statement of Comprehensive Income – 
Profit and loss reserve 

59,000  

Balance Sheet – Tangible assets  59,000 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF YOUR HOMES NEWCASTLE 
LIMITED 

 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Your Homes Newcastle Limited (‘the parent company’) 
and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Group 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, The Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group Statement of Financial Position, the Company Statement 
of Financial Position, the Group Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes 1 to 22, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 
• give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 

and of the group’s loss for the year then ended; 
 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

 
• the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is not appropriate; or 
• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 

that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 
 
Other information 

 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
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financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. 

 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
 

• the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
strategic report or directors’ report. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 
• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit 

 

Responsibilities of directors 
 

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the 
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to 
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 
 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 
 
 
 

[Signature] 
Richard Lingwood (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
  January 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABRI TRADING LIMITED 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Abri Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the 
Statement of Financial Position and the related notes1 to 19, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 
• give a true and fair view of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for the year 

then ended; 
 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are 
independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

 
• the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is not appropriate; or 
• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 

that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

 
 
Other information 

 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
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required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. 

 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
 

• the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ 
report. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
 
Responsibilities of directors 

 
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 

Use of our report 
 

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 
 
 
 
 

[Signature] 
Richard Lingwood (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
  January 2021 
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To be first for housing 
 
 
 
Your Homes Newcastle Board 
26 January 2021  
 

 

 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES 
 

1. Revolutionary services that support successful living 

STRATEGIC RISK 
REGISTER 

NUMBER & 
TITLE 

SR5: Failure to comply with existing and new 
regulatory and reporting requirements.   
 

LIKELIHOOD 1 (Rare) 
 

IMPACT 4 (High) 
 

FINANCIAL / VALUE FOR MONEY 
IMPLICATIONS 
 

There will be a positive impact on the 2020/21 budget, 
as the pandemic has delayed recruitment for the new 
complaints team. The on-going learning could result in 
changes to remedies payments. 

CUSTOMER IMPACT / VIEWS Dealing effectively and learning from complaints forms 
an important aspect of customer insight, which will be 
used to improve services and the customer 
experience.  

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Understanding customer satisfaction and complaints is 
intrinsic to ensuring our services can respond to 
equality and diversity considerations.  

 

TITLE Complaint Handling Code Update 
AUTHOR Jen Vinton - Customer Services Director 

COMPANY Your Homes Newcastle 
ACTION REQUIRED  For discussion 

SUMMARY 

This report provides an update on the changing regulatory 
landscape for complaint handling and provides an update on the 
work which has been undertaken to become compliant with the 
Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Handling Code. 
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Your Homes Newcastle 
 

 Complaint handling code update  
 
 

1. Purpose of report 

1.1 The Housing Ombudsman requires board members to be updated on the 
outcome of our self-assessment to the standards set out in their new 
complaint handling code. 
This report provides an update on the changing regulatory landscape for 
complaint handling and provides confirmation that YHN is now compliant with 
the new code.  

2. Background information 

2.1 In September 2019, Board received an update on the consumer standards 
and the emerging regulatory changes for social housing providers when 
dealing with customer complaints. This included the need for landlords to have 
clear mechanisms in place for tenants to complain and for landlords to be able 
to respond promptly and effectively. 
The update also provided information on the findings of an independent review 
of our complaints process carried out in 2019 and how YHN was planning to 
make further improvements.  
These improvements included the need for better reporting and analysis of 
complaints to ensure any learning could be identified and acted upon.  
A dedicated customer experience team was also proposed to oversee the 
implementation of the required improvements and to manage the complaints 
process moving forward.  

3. Regulatory changes 

3.1 In July 2020, the Housing Ombudsman Service published its new complaint 
handling code which took effect on 1st September 2020.  
The purpose of the code is to provide a framework to support effective 
complaint handling, learning and to drive service improvements. It will also 
help to create a positive complaint handling culture amongst staff and 
residents. 
For boards, the code supports culture setting and intelligence for assurance 
purposes to provide insight into their organisation, so they understand the 
complaints which are being received and their impact on residents. 
YHN must comply with the requirements of the new code and landlords were 
required to self-assess and be compliant by 31st December 2020. 
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Non- compliance could result in the Ombudsman issuing a failure order which 
could ultimately result in the regulator being notified and publication of the 
order. 

3.2 The Social Housing White Paper was published on 17th November 2020. It 
sets out reforms that aim to speed up the complaint’s procedure for residents, 
by improving access to the Housing Ombudsman, and making landlords more 
accountable. It is also reforming the Regulator of Social Housing and the 
Housing Ombudsman service to drive the culture change required.  
The government will: 

• Ensure landlords self-assess against the Housing Ombudsman’s 
Complaints Handling Code by 31st December 2020. 

• Ensure tenants know how to raise complaints and have confidence in 
the system. It will expect landlords, the Housing Ombudsman and the 
Building Safety Regulator to ensure residents have clear and up to date 
information on how to complain. 

• Legislate to ensure clear co-operation between the Housing 
Ombudsman and the Regulator of Social Housing to hold landlords to 
account more effectively when things go wrong. 

• Make landlords more accountable for their actions by publicising the 
details of cases, volumes, categories and outcomes on the Housing 
Ombudsman’s website. 

4.  Progress update 

4.1 Customer Experience team 
It is pleasing to report that despite delays to recruitment due to the Covid 
pandemic, our new Customer Experience team was introduced in September 
2020. The team forms part of our customer service division which also 
includes our contact centre and Hub reception staff. 
Working closely with colleagues from across YHN, the team have led work to 
collate an accurate assessment of complaint handling across the organisation 
in order to complete the complaint handling code self-assessment. 

4.2 Complaints handling code self-assessment. 
The code sets out requirements for landlords which will allow them to respond 
to complaints effectively and fairly. 
All social housing providers are required to self-assess against the code. The 
key aims of the new code are to: 

• Provide a standard definition of a complaint.  
• Ensure customers are aware of and have easy access to the complaint 

procedure, including their right to access the Housing Ombudsman 
Service at any point. 

• Provide a dedicated person or team assigned to take responsibility for 
complaint handling. 

• Provide customers with an easy to follow complaints procedure with 
clear timelines and the provision of appropriate remedies. 
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• Remove any third stage to the complaints process unless the landlord 
believes strongly and documents why it requires one.  

• Creates a positive complaint handling culture through continuous 
learning and improvement. 
 

4.3 Findings of self- assessment 
It’s encouraging to note that the self-assessment confirms that our existing 
policies and procedures are broadly compliant and that there is enthusiasm 
and commitment from across the business to deliver great service. 
 
Two areas have been highlighted where we need to improve further to ensure 
ongoing compliance with the code and these are to: 
 

• Ensure policies and procedures are followed consistently. 
• Embed a culture and framework to encourage learning and continuous 

improvement. 
 
We are also in discussion with Newcastle City Council to seek their agreement 
to change our complaints process from three stages to two. The third stage 
currently involves the council in providing a final review of a complaint, where 
the customer has been dissatisfied with the response at stage 2 (from an 
Assistant Director or Director). 
 
Although a three-stage process would not affect our compliance with the code, 
we believe that its removal will provide a simpler process for customers. 
 
Please see appendix one for a copy of the completed self -assessment 
document. 

4.4 In December 2020, a Customer Experience Tool kit was shared with all staff to  
introduce the new Customer Experience team and improve understanding of 
complaints policy and procedures. The tool kit also included a learning log so 
we can begin to capture learning from formal complaints. This information will 
be useful to feed into future reports to Finance and Performance committee. 
All staff were asked to read and confirm their understanding by 31 December 
2020 which allows us to confirm our compliance with the code. 

5. Next steps 

5.1 The Customer Experience Team will continue to embed compliance with the 
code by holding a series of regular forums with staff to discuss topics and 
share best practice. 
Feedback from these sessions together with regular analysis of complaints 
information, data and learning will also be shared with senior management.  
The team will also co-ordinate and monitor complaint handling across YHN, 
ensuring that learning and improvement activity is implemented. 
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Corporate Management Team have received regular updates in our work to 
become compliant with the code and will continue to play a leading role in 
embedding change and supporting ongoing improvement. 

6 Conclusion and recommendations. 

6.1 Our approach to the publication of the Complaints Handing Code and the 
White Paper is in two phases. Phase one, was to complete the self-
assessment and ensure compliance with the code by the 31 December 
2020, which we have achieved.  
Phase two is to embed the requirements of the code and a change in 
culture to support learning and continuous improvement. By doing so we 
will put the customer experience at the heart of what we do. 

6.2 Board are recommended to: 

• Receive this report for discussion; 
• Agree that further detail on complaints and the learning log will be 

considered at future Finance and Performance committee meetings. 
 

 
Background Papers 
Consumer standards and self-assessments Board report – September 2019 
Annual Complaints report – Finance and performance Committee - August 2020 
 
Contact Officer:  
If you have any questions about this report that you would like to clarify before the 
meeting, you can contact Jen Vinton by email jen.vinton@yhn.org.uk 
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Measuring up 
The Housing Ombudsman’s Complaints Handling Code provides clear guidance about 
how housing providers like YHN should deal with customer complaints.

We have looked at the ways we meet the guidelines set out in the Code to understand 
what we are good at and which parts of the complaints process we need to get better at.

Here is a snapshot of how we measure up against the Code.

What the Complaints Handling Code 
says about...

What YHN does to comply 

Understanding what a complaint is 

We should clearly and fairly set out what 
is and what isn’t a complaint, including 
timescales for reporting complaints.

Our definition of a complaint matches 
the Housing Ombudsman’s definition.

We clearly set out what is and isn’t a 
complaint.  

How easy it is to make a complaint 

There should be different ways to make a 
complaint and our complaints process and 
policy should be available to all customers.  
We should take into account customers’ 
different needs and regularly provide 
information about how customers can 
make a complaint. 

Customers can make a complaint 
online, over the phone, by email, in 
writing and in person.

We have a reasonable adjustments 
policy which explains how we adapt 
our processes to meet customers’ 
different needs.

Having a complaints team and complaints 
process

We should have a member of staff or team 
responsible for complaints and an agreed 
process for investigating complaints.

We should keep records of the complaints 
we receive and how we handle them and 
customers should be given the option 
to refer complaints to the Housing 
Ombudsman when they are not satisfied.

The Housing Ombudsman does not believe 
a three stage process is necessary.

Our customer experience team is 
dedicated to handling complaints.

Our complaints process is published 
on our website.

We keep records of correspondence 
about complaints in line with general  
data protection regulations.

We provide information about the 
Housing Ombudsman to everyone 
who has made a complaint.

We are currently looking at 
streamlining our complaints process 
to having two stages instead of 
three.
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Get in touch 
If you’re not happy with any part of 
the service you receive from us we want 
to hear about it. You can make 
a complaint by: 

• Visiting www.yhn.org.uk 

• Calling us on 0191 278 8600 

• Emailing YHNComplaints@yhn.org.uk 

• Writing to: Customer Experience Team, 
Your Homes Newcastle, YHN House, 
Benton Park Road, Newcastle, NE7 7LX. 

What the Complaints Handling Code 
says about...

What YHN does to comply 

Keeping customers informed about how 
their complaint is progressing 

We should keep customers informed about 
how we are dealing with their complaint 
and if it’s taking longer than expected we 
should explain why.

We keep customers informed about 
how we are dealing with their 
complaint.

Customers are given the chance to 
respond to and challenge how we 
investigate their complaint.

We log and acknowledge complaints 
quickly (within two working days).

We tell customers how to pursue their 
complaint if they are not happy with a 
response we give them.

Making sure complaints are dealt with 
fairly 

Customers should be able to request that 
we contact a representative (such as a 
family member) about their complaint 
if that is what they want.  We should 
clearly explain the reasons we agree or 
disagree with their complaint after we have 
investigated it. 

Customers can nominate a 
representative to handle their 
complaint for them.

We provide information about how 
and why we have made a decision 
about a complaint.  

Putting things right after a complaint is 
made  

We should take steps to put things right if 
something has gone wrong.

We take action to put things right 
when something has gone wrong, 
using our remedies policy when we 
need to.

Learning from complaints and making 
improvements to services 

We should use complaints as an 
opportunity to find ways to improve our 
services and share this learning with our 
customers, Board and partners. 

We have a learning log for all staff to 
record what they have learned from 
the complaints they receive.

We monitor the types of complaints 
we receive and discuss these with our 
senior leadership team on a regular 
basis so we can address issues as we 
become aware of them.   
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YHN Board 24 November 2020 (5pm – 7:10pm) 
 
Present: 
 
L Blakey, S Copley, A Cuthbertson, L Docherty, T Gates (Chair), D Hall, L Hobson, 
G Kane (up to item 775), K Lowry, J McCarty (Vice-Chair), M Page, P Scope,  
B Tebay 
 
In attendance: 
 
A Baker-Daley   Governance Officer 
J Davison   Company Secretary/Assistant Director Business Support 
G van Enk-Bones   Finance Director 
I Gallagher   Acting Assets and Development Director 
D Langhorne   Acting Managing Director 
J Vinton   Customer Services Director 
 
C McMullen Housing Policy & Commissioning Team Manager, 

Newcastle City Council 
 
769 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
The Chair thanked members who attended the health and safety presentation prior 
to the meeting.  
 
All members were recorded as being present. 
 
770 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
None 
 
771 CHAIR’S ITEMS 
 
Away Day – 1st December 
The away day will follow the same pattern as June; a morning session and afternoon 
session, but this time it will be externally facilitated. The first session will explore how 
members can enhance the customer voice at Board, which reflects feedback given 
during appraisals. The second session will be held with the Customer Service 
Committee on connecting Board and the organisation with the customer voice. Email 
invites will be sent soon. 
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e-learning 
Five members have completed their e-learning to date, the GDPR and safeguarding 
modules are still live for those yet to complete them. A health and safety module will 
follow in December. Support is available should there be any access issues. 
 
Conferences and events 
B Tebay, A Cuthbertson and the Chair recently attended the CIH North East virtual 
Conference recently. A Cuthbertson will be attending the NHF Audit and Risk 
Conference next month and will circulate any useful notes afterwards to Board. 
 
Health and Safety Training 
P Scope has sent an email to Adam Kendall from Bevan Brittan in thanks for 
delivering the annual health and safety refresher this afternoon. A couple of points 
have been taken away for Health and Safety Committee to pick up, and possibly 
Board. The Committee have regularly discussed fire safety transformation, it is felt 
that we have a lot of internal experts that could talk to Board if required. The Chair 
acknowledged that the Board cannot absolve themselves of this direct responsibility, 
adding that attending their first Committee meeting they were impressed by the 
knowledge of fire safety and level of skills.  
 
Skills audit 
The Chair has now considered feedback given by members on the draft skills audit 
form. An updated version will be circulated in due course for members to complete 
and return. 
 
NHF Code of Governance 
The code has been updated and published this month. The Governance Team will 
familiarise themselves with it and update Board in due course. 
 
Social Housing White Paper 
The paper was published by Government on 17th November. There will be an 
opportunity to discuss implications for YHN in the future. 
 
Tina 
Tina Drury will be returning in January. The Chair gave thanks for D Langhorne’s 
work as Acting Managing Director, to J Vinton, I Gallagher and G van Enk-Bones as 
Directors, and to the Assistant Directors for their work, support and assurances. 
 
773 HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY REVIEW 
 
I Gallagher presented the report, which sought approval of an updated Health and 
Safety Policy. 
 
The policy has been reviewed recently by Health and Safety Committee, and their 
comments were incorporated into the draft policy, highlighted for Board attention. 
During the health and safety training, Adam referred to communications and 
whistleblowing, which are already incorporated into the policy.  
 
L Hobson asked whether Executive Team feel there is enough in the policy that 
relates to YHN fostering a culture of openness and transparency, feeling and being 
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able to speak up and speak out. It also emphasises that through analysis the policy 
will not impact negatively on protected characteristics, but it impacts on all staff. 
 
I Gallagher acknowledged feedback, adding that legal frameworks set out the basic 
policy requirements but will amend the policy to balance it culturally. Whistleblowing 
hasn’t been a commonly used route, which is why we were keen to build it into the 
policy to ensure an awareness of it. A huge amount of work has gone into near miss 
reporting as there has been significant under reporting. It will be something we 
continue to pursue, and links back to the organisational culture, staff need to have 
confidence in reporting near misses.   
 
P Scope commented that the Health and Safety Committee have regularly discussed 
encouraging near miss reporting and acknowledged L Hobson’s point on a potential 
group of people not reporting might be linked to age or social background, 
suggesting that it be incorporated into the policy.  
 
L Docherty asked what kind of technology supports the ability to record and report 
near misses. I Gallagher replied that it is a web page but there is a process behind 
that which produces reports for investigation. Picking up on L Hobson’s point we can 
do more, such as looking at the mobile service area. L Docherty added that having 
tools for further reporting could be quicker and save time. 
 
D Langhorne noted that the Equality Diversity and Inclusion plan and strategy are 
interconnected; a recent HIVE survey sought to reach the protected characteristic 
groups that we don’t always hear from, this will be a platform to give the opportunity 
to do so anonymously, with the addition of an anonymised messenger system within 
the survey that will allow staff to raise any issues with us directly. Results will be 
reported to Board in due course 
 
A Cuthbertson commented that the document is great but doesn’t express our 
personality, suggesting that it refers more to the embedding of health and safety as a 
positive aspect of culture, rather than an organisational obligation. It could reflect a 
strong theme of how we all believe it is not just about doing the minimum but being 
proud of YHN as an exemplar organisation.  
 
Summarising, the Chair acknowledged Board’s desire for a stronger cultural element 
within the policy, more emphasis on equality, diversity and inclusion, and for the 
Executive Team to consider the suggestion to investigate alternative reporting tools 
that Health and Safety Committee or Executive Team could review. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Board: 

• Received the report and considered the information presented. 
• Approved the policy, pending agreed amendments 

 
774 GROUP GOVERNANCE HANDBOOK 
 
J Davison presented the report, which sought approval of proposed changes to the 
Group Governance Handbook (the Handbook) to reflect changes to group structure 
following the dissolution of Asfaleia Ltd. and amendments to committee terms of 
reference following a review by committees. The amendments were presented as an 
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interim update pending outcomes of the Leazes Homes project. If the project were to 
be completed there would be a full review of all governance documents. 
 
M Page highlighted the wish of Finance and Performance Committee to reduce the 
quorum from three to two members. The Chair asked if there was any reason why 
this reduction couldn’t proceed, given that the remit of all committees is to oversee 
and not make key decisions. There have been occasions when the Committee has 
not been quorate, resulting in meetings suspended or agreements sought afterward.  
 
K Lowry suggested that the new Code of Governance may have advice on quorum 
level, given that we adopt it we may need to cross reference. J Davison commented 
that governance codes in general would recommend at least half of the size of the 
committee. At the moment our committee members do stand at four each, working 
on a quorum of two could work, though it is a question whether Board are happy for 
potentially two members to undertake committee work and report back to Board. We 
do have a good structure whereby all committee activity and minutes are reported to 
Board. 
 
B Tebay asked if the Leazes Homes project would mean a substantial re-write of the 
Handbook and documents, and if the timescales are achievable. J Davison replied 
that the Handbook was written at a time when subsidiaries were created in 2015, 
personally they would like a full review of it, previously there have been discussions 
of one encompassing document that includes all delegations including those on 
financial and procurement, which at the moment are separate. The timescales for the 
project are likely achievable due to having help in place internally and externally from 
legal advisors. 
 
D Hall asked if a committee has a quorum of two, what would happen if they 
disagree on a particular matter, to which T Gates replied that the chair - or 
nominated chair should they not be present - would have a casting vote. 
 
L Hobson commended the change in pronouns within the Handbook. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Board: 

• Received the report and considered the information presented. 
• Approved the Group Governance Handbook, pending agreed amendments 

 
775 MINUTES OF 22nd SEPTEMBER 
 
The minutes of the Board meeting held on 22 September were agreed as a true 
record and would be signed by the Chair in due course. 
 
G Kane left the meeting 
 
776 ACTION LIST 
 
The Chair noted that both actions had been completed. 
 
RESOLVED – that the action plan was received, and information noted. 
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777 FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Chair highlighted that Pat Ritchie will be attending the next meeting in January, 
normally in March, to talk about the relationship between YHN and the Council and 
opportunities for future joint working. It will also include budget pressures. 
 
The Chair added that the structure of the forward plan for 2021 is being revised in 
order to create time for thorough discussion and debate, similar to the level at this 
meeting. 
 
We are working on forward plan to create time to have discussion and debate. 
 
RESOLVED – that the 2021 forward plan was received for information 
 
778 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
G van Enk-Bones gave an update on the annual accounts and financial statements; 
the auditors won’t be able to sign off YHN accounts until NCC has had theirs signed 
off first. An additional short Board meeting may be required in December to receive 
and approve the accounts. There are no further queries on the accounts since last 
considered in July. Members will be kept updated. 
 
G van Enk-Bones noted that the Board would usually consider a report for 
information on proposed HRA rent amendments in November, however it is behind 
schedule at NCC. It is likely that it will now be considered in January, with CPI+1 
being the recommended increase. The Chair added that the Board will be keen to 
have a chance to discuss this and have their views known. 
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YHN Board Forward Plan 2021 
 
Meeting 23 March 2021 
 
Report Name Purpose Confidential? Report Author 
Leazes Homes 
 

Approval  Managing Director 

Budget/Delivery Plan/Risk Register 2021-22  
 

Approval  Finance Director 

D22 Update 
 

Approval × Managing Director 

2021-2022 Repairs & Construction Services Targets & 
Transformation Update  
 

Approval  Assets and Development Director 

Safeguarding Annual Report 
 

Discussion  Customer Services Director 

Housing Investment Update 
 

Discussion  Assets and Development Director 

ABRI TRADING 
Abri Trading – Budget 
 

Approval  Finance Director 

Abri Trading – Business Activity Update 
 

Discussion  Finance Director 

 
 
Meeting 18 May 2021 
 
Report Name Purpose Confidential? Report Author 
Health and Safety Annual Report 
 

Pre-reviewed × Assets and Development Director 

NHF Governance Code  
 

Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
 

Re-appointment of Co-optee 
 

Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
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Meeting 27 July 2021 
 
Report Name Purpose Confidential? Report Author 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 
-Year End Reserves 
 

Approval × Finance Director 

Housing Investment Update 
 

Discussion  Assets and Development Director 
 

Modern Slavery Statement 
 

Approval × Assets and Development Director   
 

Director Appointments, Re-appointments, Annual Appointment 
of Vice Chair 
 

Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
 

Re-appointment of Co-optee  
 

Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
 

ABRI TRADING 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 
 

Approval × Finance Director  

Abri Trading – Business Activity Update 
 

Discussion  Finance Director  

 
Meeting 21 September 2021 
 
Report Name Purpose Confidential? Report Author  
Strategic Risk Register 
 

Discussion  Finance Director  

GDPR Annual Report and Policy 
 

Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
 

2022 Board and Committee Calendar 
 

Information × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
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Meeting 23 November 2021 
 
Report Name Purpose Confidential? Report Author 
Health and Safety Policy 
 

Approval × Assets and Development Director  

Housing Investment Update 
 

Discussion  Assets and Development Director 
 

Proposed Newcastle City Council HRA Rent Amendment 2022-
2023 
 

Approval  Finance Director 

Committee Terms of Reference Approval × Assistant Director Business 
Support 
 

ABRI TRADING 
Abri Trading – Business Activity Update 
 

Discussion  Finance Director  
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